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Corporate Information
ATEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:
HUI Sai Chung (Chairman)

HUI Kwok Kwong (Deputy Chairman and Managing Director)

WONG Chi Ying, Anthony (Vice Chairman)
LAl Kam Wah (Deputy Managing Director)
LIU Sau Lai

NG Chi Ming

Independent Non-executive Directors:
HO Wai Chi, Paul

CHAN Dit Lung

CHING Yu Lung

COMPANY SECRETARY
CHAN Ka Ho

AUDIT COMMITTEE

HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman)
CHAN Dit Lung

CHING Yu Lung

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman)
CHAN Dit Lung

CHING Yu Lung

HUI Sai Chung

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman)
CHAN Dit Lung

CHING Yu Lung

HUI Sai Chung

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman)

CHAN Dit Lung

CHING Yu Lung

BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
Citibank, N.A. Hong Kong Branch
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AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

PUBLIC RELATIONS CONSULTANT

Strategic Financial Relations Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HMI |

Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit 3, 6th Floor

Hopeful Factory Centre

10 Wo Shing Street

Fo Tan

New Territories

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL REGISTRARS (IN BERMUDA)
Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited
Rosebank Centre

I'l Bermudiana Road

Pembroke, HMO8

Bermuda

BRANCH REGISTRARS (IN HONG KONG)

Union Registrars Limited

|8/F, Fook Lee Commercial Centre
Town Place, 33 Lockhart Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
1047

WEBSITE
http://www.nhh.com.hk
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Directors and Senior Management
ESREBEEEAS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr HUI Sai Chung, aged 65, is the Chairman and a co-founder of the Group. He is
responsible for formulating and overseeing the implementation of the Group's business
strategy. He is also responsible for the marketing and sales functions of the Group. He has

more than 42 years' experience in the plastics industry.

Mr HUI Kwok Kwong, aged 63, is the Deputy Chairman, Managing Director and a co-
founder of the Group. He is responsible for the overall operations and administration of
the Group. He has more than 42 years' experience in the plastics industry and he was
awarded the Associateship (Plastic Industry) by The Professional Validation Council of
Hong Kong Industries.

Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony, aged 56, is the Vice Chairman of the Group. He is
in charge of the R&D centre of the Group, as well as developing business activities and
opportunities for the Group. Before joining the Group in the present capacity, Dr Wong
was an Associate Professor in the Department of Industrial and Manufacturing Systems
Engineering of The University of Hong Kong. He holds a B.Tech (Hons) degree and a Ph.D
degree in Chemical Engineering and is also a Chartered Engineer, Chartered Scientist, a
corporate member of The Institution of Chemical Engineers and a member of The Hong
Kong Institution of Engineers. He had worked for two multinational chemical companies

prior to taking up a lecturer post with The University of Hong Kong in 1986.

Mr LAl Kam Wah, aged 61, is the Deputy Managing Director of the Group. Mr Lai
holds a Master of Arts degree and is a member of the Law Society of Hong Kong, the
Law Society of England and Wales and the Law Society of Australian Capital Territory.
He has been practicing law for over 28 years. He is also an associate of the Hong Kong
Institute of Arbitrators, a Member of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators, a Fellow of the
Hong Kong Institute of Directors, Manager of four secondary schools in Hong Kong, and
Member of the Panel of Adjudicators of the Control of Obscene and Indecent Articles

Ordinance.

Madam LIU Sau Lai, aged 54, is responsible for personnel and office administration
of the Group. She holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree from The Open
University of Hong Kong. She joined the Group in 1977. Madam Liu is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. She has more than 27 years' experience in plastic

materials trading.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr NG Chi Ming, aged 47, is the Technology Development Director of Greater
China Department and Operations Director of Colorants Business of the Group. He
is responsible for developing of plastics colouration, compounding technology and key
accounts in the Greater China market. He holds a Higher Diploma in Textile Chemistry
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic (The Hong Kong Polytechnic University's predecessor).
He also holds a Master of Engineering Management degree from the University of
Technology, Sydney. He joined the Group in 1988 and left in 1995. He re-joined the
Group in early 1998 and has over 23 years" experience in plastic colouration and plastic

injection moulding techniques.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul, aged 61, is the managing partner of Paul W.C. Ho & Company,
Certified Public Accountants (Practising). He holds a Bachelor degree in Social Sciences
and is an associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales, United Kingdom and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants.

Mr CHAN Dit Lung, aged 62, is the Managing Director of Wellknown Plastic Material
Ltd. He has more than 35 years' experience in plastic trading. He was formerly a lecturer
of Hong Kong Plastics Technology Centre in Polytechnic University. He is now the
President of Hong Kong Plastic Material Suppliers Association, President of Hong Kong
Plastics Recycling Association, Vice President of The Professional Validation Council of
Hong Kong Industries Limited, Director of Hong Kong Plastics Technology Centre and
Chairman of Hong Kong Brands Protection Alliance. He has also been awarded the Chief

Executive's Commendation for Community Service.
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Directors and Senior Management
ESREBEEEAS

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr CHING Yu Lung, aged 42, is the assistant to Chairman of a reputable real estate
company. He had been the Vice President - Finance for Hong Kong and China Gas
Investment Limited, a subsidiary of the Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited (&
ABRERFERAT), a company listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
and was responsible for the overall financial management of its joint ventures in the
People’s Republic of China. Mr Ching had also been executive director, finance director,
company secretary and qualified accountant of the Company. He has more than 20 vears
of experience in auditing, finance and accounting. He obtained a Bachelor of Business
Administration degree from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and an Executive
Master of Business Administration degree from the Tsinghua University in 1992 and 2006
respectively. Mr Ching is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and a member of

the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr NG Tat Ching, Ben, aged 57, is a Director and President of Ngai Hing Engineering
Plastic Materials Limited, Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic (Shanghai) Co., Ltd, Ngai Hing
Engineering Plastic (Hong Kong) Limited, Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic (Dongguan) Co,,
Ltd. and Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic Materials (Shanghai) Ltd,, and is responsible for
the overall business operations of the above mentioned group of companies. Mr Ben Ng
holds a Bachelor degree in Chemistry (Major) and Statistics (Minor) from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He joined the Group as a co-founder and an executive director
of the above mentioned group of companies in 1997, and has over 3| years' experience
in plastic industries globally. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Ben Ng has held several key
positions in various multinational companies for engineering plastic materials sales and

product marketing in Asia Pacific regions.

Mr WONG Chi Hang, Eric, aged 41, is the General Manager of Ngai Hing Hong
Plastic Materials (Hong Kong) Limited and is responsible for the sales and marketing in the
Group's trading business. He holds a Bachelor degree in Chemistry from The University
of Hong Kong and a Master degree in Business Administration from the University of
South Australia. He joined the Group in 1994 and has over |8 years' experience in sales

& marketing.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Mr CHAN Ka Ho, aged 39, is the Financial Controller and Company Secretary of

the Group. He holds a Bachelor degree in Business Administration in Accounting and
Finance from The University of Hong Kong. He also holds a joint Master of Science
degree in Mathematics for Finance and Actuarial Science from City University of Hong
Kong and University of Paris-Dauphine, France. He is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He is also a Chartered Financial Analyst charterholder and a Certified
Financial Risk Manager. He has over 16 years' experience in auditing, finance and

accounting and is responsible for the financial and treasury management of the Group.

Mr CHENG Yuk Lun, Allen, aged 50, is the General Manager of Tsing Tao Ngai
Hing Trading Co., Ltd. He is responsible for sales, marketing, and product development
of Colour Masterbatches and Functional Masterbatches for plastic industries in Qingdao
and Northern China Provinces plus the overall management of the Tsing Tao Ngai
Hing operations. He holds a Higher Diploma in Textile Chemistry from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic (The Hong Kong Polytechnic University's predecessor). Mr Cheng joined the
Group in July 2010. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Cheng has over 28 years' experience in
printing ink and coating industry and held several senior positions in various multinational
companies for business management, factory operation, sales & marketing in Asia Pacific

Regions.

Mr HUI Yan Kit, Sam, aged 39, is the General Manager of Shanghai Ngai Hing Plastic
Materials Co.,, Limited and is responsible for sales and marketing of colour masterbatches
and functional masterbatches for plastic industries in Shanghai and other cities in Eastern
China. He holds a Bachelor degree in Arts from University of Toronto. He joined the
Group in 1998 and has over 14 years' experience in business management, sales &

marketing. Mr Hui Yan Kit, Sam is the son of Mr Hui Sai Chung.
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Directors and Senior Management
ESREBEEEAS

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Mr LUl Wing Cheung, aged 48, is the General Manager of Dongguan Ngai Hing Plastic
Materials Ltd. and Xiamen Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials Co,, Ltd.. He is responsible
for the Group's Colour Masterbatches and Functional masterbatches in Southern China
plus overall management of the Ngai Hing operations in Dongguan and Xiamen. He holds
a B. Eng(Hons) degree in Mechanical Engineering from University of Newcastle upon
Tyne, UK. and Postgraduate Diploma in Management from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He is a Chartered Engineer of the Engineering Council (UK.) and a member of
The Institution of Mechanical Engineers (U.K)) and The Hong Kong Institution of Engineer
respectively. Mr Lui joined the Group in 201 | and has over |3 years' experience in plastic
injection molding industry. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Lui has held several senior

positions in various companies for business management.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

| hereby announce the audited results of Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited (“the
Company™) and its subsidiaries (collectively “the Group”) for the year ended 30th June
2012. The Group recorded an audited consolidated turnover of HK$1,640,416,000
(2011 HK$1,687,687,000) and profit attributable to equity holders of the Company of
HK$1,365,000 (201 1: HK$31,102,000). Earnings per share for the year were HK0.37 cents
(2011: HK8.42 cents). To retain sufficient capital for future business development, the

Board of Directors (the "Board”) does not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The sovereign debt crisis in Europe and the US has led to a continuous slowdown in the
global economy. Consequently, the Group bolstered cost control and adjusted its business
strategies, which resulted in improved business performance in the second half year.
Gross profit margin rose from 8.1% in the first half year to 9.2% in the second half year,
whereas the full year gross profit margin dipped modestly by 1.3% year-on-year. Gross
profit maintained at the level of HK$141,520,000. The results thus marked a turnaround
from a loss position in the first half year, with profit before taxation of approximately
HK$ 11,365,000 reported in the year.

During the period under review, the Group implemented strict control to lower inventory
levels and adopted effective cost control measures. Such efforts enabled the Group to
maintain sales volume and turnover levels that resulted in a healthier financial position.
The Groups cash at bank on hand as at 30th June 2012 increased slightly by 12% to
HK$93,349,000 when compared to that of 31st December 201 |. Gearing ratio enhanced
as well, declining to 65.8% and bank borrowings dropped by 4% to HK$294,367,000
when compared to that of 30th June 201 1. The Group also maintained a healthy balance

sheet.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

It is worth noting that the Group achieved fruitful results in terms of seeking potential
customers and developing new products and markets. It secured new orders from
internationally renowned brands in the automobile and electronics sectors, among others
in the year under review. Although faced with uncertain economic conditions, the Groups
overall tumover declined only modestly by 3% when compared with the corresponding

period last year.

Rising labour cost and inflation have however caused the Groups distribution costs
and administrative expenses to increase by |1% and 9%, respectively. Moreover, the
borrowing interest rates in Mainland China has continued to rise during the period under
review, leading to a 35% increase in finance costs. Including the Groups other gains, such
as fair value gains on investment properties, net exchange gains and unrealised fair value
gains and realised gains of derivative financial instruments that amounted to approximately
HK$ 18,504,000, profit attributable to equity holders for the year was HK$1,365,000.

Among the three major businesses of the Group, the colorants, pigments and compound
plastic resin business segment achieved the most satisfactory performance during the
year. Driven by outstanding sales performance from its business in Shanghai, the Groups
turnover grew by 6% to HK$360,588,000 when compared to the same period last
year. The growth was driven by the Groups efforts toward nurturing ties with customers
capable of delivering higher gross profit margin. Also, the Group strengthened relationship
with existing customers so as to boost order bookings. Certain food packaging customers
even appointed the Group as their key supplier to centralise their orders which were
previously dispersed to other suppliers. All of these developments helped drive turnover
growth of this business segment. Additionally, the Shanghai subsidiary successfully
penetrated the automobile market during the year and secured new orders from famous
automobile brands. Thanks to the persistent efforts to control expenses, the Group
managed to maintain costs at a level similar with the corresponding period last year and
increased gross profit margin by approximately one percentage point. The growth in
turnover also enabled the Group to achieve greater economies of scale, leading to a surge
in profit before taxation of 73% to HK$32,978,000.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Uncertainties over the macro-economy and continued slowdown in exports to Europe
and the US led to the decline in overall demand for engineering plastics. Turover of this
segment decreased by 3% year on year to HK$235,018,000 while gross profit margin
remained at a similar level with the corresponding period last year. Taking into account
that operating expenses doubled during the period of factory relocation, profit before
taxation correspondingly dropped by 32 %. However, the Group believes that the impact
of the factory relocation was only temporary. Once fully operational, the new factory will
help boost the Groups profitability and allow it to pursue business expansion in Mainland
China. Besides the new Tai Po plant in Hong Kong having commenced operation last
year, the Group also has expanded the production facility in Shanghai for the engineering
plastics business this year. The new production line will not only increase capacity, but will
also consolidate and expand the Groups business in Southern and Eastern China, lead to
greater operational efficiency and allow it to capture a larger share of the Mainland China
market. The new Shanghai production facility has begun operation during the year and has

received new orders since July of this year.

The plastics trading business, which targets ultimately Europe and US markets through
exports from Hong Kong, was affected by the European debt crisis. Compounded by a
drop in raw material prices during the period, a decrease in the selling price of products
consequently resulted, in tum causing a fall in turnover of 6% to HK$1,042,202,000. As
such, the Group implemented measures to lower inventory, leading to a decline in gross
profit margin. Gross profit margin decreased by around 2% year on year. During the
year, apart from implementing inventory control measures, the Group also leveraged its
competitive advantages to focus on promoting specialised products with stable prices
and higher margins. Furthermore, the Group received new orders from heavy industry
manufacturers to produce accessories for electrical devices and automobile parts, helping

the Group maintain its growth momentum.
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PROSPECTS

Looking at the second half of 2012, overall market conditions will continue to be affected
by uncertainties over the global economy. However, price fluctuations in plastics and
oil have narrowed and the management expects raw material prices will stabilise with
operating costs declining for the plastics industry. Besides, the China market will continue
to grow and remain as the Groups key development focus. The Group will actively
entice new customers and explore new markets in Westem China in order to enlarge its
market share in Mainland China. In addition, the Group will continue to employ strict cost
controls, broaden sources of income and reduce expenditures so as to maintain healthy

business growth.

In respect of colorant and compounded plastic resin products, seeing the outstanding sales
performance of the Shanghai operation, the Group will replicate the successful business
model to other sales offices in Mainland China such as Guangzhou, Westem China and
North-eastern China. At the same time, the Group will establish closer ties with its
customers, build long-term cooperative relationships with more international brands and
explore opportunities via its link with the International Colour Alliance. The plant in Hong
Kong will also plan to expand production lines for colorant and compounded plastic resin

segment to complement business development and enhance operational efficiency.

Leveraging the successful business model from Shanghai sales office, the Group will
implement aggressive strategies to expand the engineering plastics business network in
Mainland China. During the year, plastic replacements for stone and wood entered the
Eastern China market. In respect of the Southern China market, the Group will adopt the
successful model in Hong Kong to further consolidate its market share in the region. The
new plants in Shanghai and Hong Kong will not only position the Group more clearly in
the Southern and Eastem China markets, but will also complement its production model
and create synergies for its business. During the review year, the Shanghai plant added
two production lines and received orders since July 2012. The management expects the
expanded production capacity will strengthen the Groups competitive advantage and

achieve greater cost efficiency.

Although uncertainties still exist in external markets, the Group will continue to sustain
stable growth in the plastic trading business by controlling costs and gradually lowering
inventory. The Group will also actively expand into new markets and develop the
specialised plastics business with higher profit margins. Such moves will in turn enhance

the Groups profitability over the long term.
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Chairman’s Statement
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PROSPECTS (Continued)

Overall, the Group will continue a business direction that aims at maintaining stable
growth, streamlining operations, controlling costs and lowering inventory to address
changing market conditions, as well as improving operational efficiency by utilising the new
production lines at the plants in Tai Po and Mainland China. With outstanding capabilities
and a solid reputation, the Groups subsidiary in China secured entrusted loans from
several banks during the year, allowing the Group to enjoy greater financial management.
As finance cost controls are expected to deliver benefits in the second half year, this will

provide ample resources for the Group to capture future opportunities.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group generally finances its operations with intemally generated cashflow and banking
facilities provided by its principal bankers. As at 30th June 2012, the Group has available
aggregate banking facilities of approximately HK$521,139,000, of which approximately
HK$323,200,000 have been utilised and were secured by corporate guarantees issued by
the Company and legal charges on certain leasehold land and buildings and investment
properties in The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and Hong Kong owned by the
Group (see Notes 16, |7 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements). The Group's
cash and bank balances as at 30th June 2012 amounted to approximately HK$93,349,000.
The Group's gearing ratio as at 30th June 2012 was approximately 65.8%, based on the
total bank borrowings of approximately HK$294,367,000 and the shareholders” funds of
approximately HK$447,168,000.

Details of the Group's capital commitments and the Company's contingent liabilities are

disclosed in Notes 32 and 3.1(d) to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group's borrowings and cash balances are primarily denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, Renminbi and US dollars. The Group's purchases were principally denominated in
US dollars. The Group closely monitors currency fluctuations and manages its exchange

risk by entering into forward exchange contracts from time to time.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK (Continued)
At 30th June 2012, the Group had outstanding commitments in respect of forward
contracts in order to manage the Group's exposure in foreign currencies from its

operations as follows:

Chairman’s Statement
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SNERRE(E)

REBRLETRZINERR - AEETUINE
EHMAN -MZT—-FXA=1+H XEE
ZEREHAEDMT

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Sell HK dollars for US dollars THEBTTUEAET 2,747,940 2,304,900
Sell US dollars for HK dollars STHEERTUABEABTT 171,600 990,600
Sell US dollars for Renminbi STHEETUBAARE 175,500 —

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 30th June 2012, the Group had approximately 670 full-time employees. The
Group’s emolument policies are formulated on the performance of individual employees
and are reviewed annually. The Group has an incentive scheme which is geared to the
profit of the Group and the performance of its employees, as an incentive to motivate its
employees to increase their contribution to the Group. The Group also provides social
or medical insurance coverage, and provident fund scheme (as the case may be) to its

employees depending on the location of such employees.

APPRECIATION

|, on behalf of the Board, would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to
the Group's customers, suppliers and shareholders for their unfailing support, my fellow
directors, executives and staff for their hard work in the past year. The Group will, as
always, with prudence used its best endeavour to strive for its long-term development
and the best interest of the shareholders aiming at attaining more promising results in the

coming year.

HUI Sai Chung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 21st September 2012
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Report of the
Directors
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the
year ended 30th June 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of its

principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by segment is set out in Note 5 to

the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income statement

on page 43.

At a meeting held on 27th February 2012, the Directors resolved not to declare any

interim dividend for the six months ended 31st December 201 |,

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year are set out

in Note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in

Note |6 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in Note 27 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30th June 2012, the reserves of the Company available for distribution, comprising
the contributed surplus and retained earnings, amounted to approximately HK$62,78 1,000
(2011: HK$67,111,000).

Under The Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), a company may not
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus, if there are
reasonable grounds for believing that (i) the company is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; (i) the realisable value of the company's
assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital

and share premium account.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Bye-laws and there
was no restrictions against such rights under the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the

Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

financial years is set out on page 157.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company's listed securities

during the year.
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SHARE OPTIONS

On 5th December 2002, the Company has adopted a new share option scheme (the
“New Scheme”) and terminated the old share option scheme. Under the terms of the
New Scheme, the Directors may, at their discretion, invite Directors and employees of the
Group to take up options (the “Share Options”) to subscribe for shares in the Company

subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein.

Details of the New Scheme are as follows:

() Purpose
The New Scheme is designed to give Directors and employees of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries an equity interest in the Company in order to enhance long-
term shareholder value. The granting of Share Options will also help the Company
attract and motivate individuals with experience and ability and to reward

individuals for past and future performance.

(i) Quadlifying participants

Any employee including any Director of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

(i) Maximum number of shares

The maximum number of shares, which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding Share Options granted and yet to be exercised under the New
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed
30% of the total number of shares in issue from time to time. No Share Option
may be granted under the new Scheme if such limit is exceeded. The total number
of shares available for issue under the New Scheme as at the date of the annual
report is 36,920,000, which is 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as of
that date.

The maximum entitlement for any one qualifying participant is that the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the Share Options
granted to each qualifying participant under the New Scheme and any other option
schemes (including exercised and outstanding Share Options) in any 12-month

period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

()

(v)

(vi

(vii)

Option period

In respect of any particular Share Option, such period the Board of Directors may
in its absolute discretion determine, save that such period shall not expire more
than |0 years from the date on which a Share Option is granted and accepted by

the grantee.

Amount payable on application or acceptance

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance for a period of
28 days from the date of grant. An offer of the grant of the Share Option shall be
deemed to have been accepted and to have taken effect when a letter comprising
acceptance of the Share Option duly signed by the grantee is received by the
Company.

Exercise price

The exercise price in respect of any particular option shall be (i) the closing price of
the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

(the “Stock Exchange™) daily quotations sheet on the date of grant, (ii) the average
price of the shares for the five business days immediately preceding the date of

grant or (iii) the nominal value of the share (whichever is the greater).

The remaining life of the New Scheme

The Board of Directors shall be entitled at any time within 10 years between 5th
December 2002 and 4th December 2012 to offer the grant of an option to any
qualifying participants.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

Details of the movements of Share Options outstanding as at 30th June 2012 are as

Report of the Directors
EFERE

BkhEE)
REHBEREASRL CBRER - ——4F

follows: NAZTERENZEEHNT
Number of Share Options
BREZRAHE
Granted  Exercised Lapsed
Exercise Beginning during during during End of
Date of grant Exercise period price  of the year the year the year the year the year
RHAH TR T B9 FRRY  FRfTE FRiE £X
Other continuous
contract employees
EEMANES
I3th February 2008 I3th February 2009 HK$0.78 500,000 - - - 500,000
e YIS to 12th February 2014 078787
=AtzA “ETNE-ATZAE
“F-EmE-AtH
[3th February 2008 I3th February 2010 HK$0.78 500,000 - - - 500,000
> Y2 to |2th February 2014 078787
—At=H “E-TE_AT=RE
“F-mE-ATCA
[3th February 2008 I3th February 201 | HK$0.78 500,000 - - - 500,000
“TTN\E to 12th February 2014 078 87T
ZAt+=A S =)
“F-ME-ATH
1,500,000 - - — 1,500000
No Share Options were granted or exercised during the year. WNERBER AT E T ARBRE -
SUBSIDIARIES Pt /B8 2 ]
Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2012 are set out in Note BAALRZEEMBARN-F—ZF1A

35 to the consolidated financial statements.

=T RZFREN G M HRRMES -

21

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited FRE{TERA



22

Report of the Directors
ESERE

INTEREST CAPITALISED
No interest has been capitalised by the Group during the year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year were:

Mr HUI Sai Chung (Chairman)

Mr HUI Kwok Kwong (Deputy Chairman and Managing Director)
Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony (Vice Chairman)

Mr LAl Kam Wah (Deputy Managing Director)

Madam LIU Sau Lai

Mr NG Chi Ming

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul *

Mr CHAN Dit Lung *

Mr CHING Yu Lung *

* Independent Non-executive Directors

All of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the

Company's Bye-laws.

Mr HUI Sai Chung, Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony and Mr CHING Yu Lung retire by
rotation in accordance with clause 87 of the Company's Bye-laws and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-election.

In order to comply with the code provision A4.3 as set out in Appendix 4 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), separate
resolution should be set out for shareholders of the Company to approve the further
appointment of Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul as Independent Non-executive Director at the

forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term subject to

retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

The fundamental policy of the Group's remuneration and incentive scheme is to link
total compensation for senior management with the achievement of annual and long-
term performance goals. By providing total compensation at competitive industry levels,
the Group seeks to attract, motivate and retain key executives essential to its long-
term success. Senior management incentive scheme includes an equity component that
is designed to align the long-term interest of management with those of shareholders.
The remuneration package comprises of annual directorship fees, salaries, discretionary

bonuses and incentive scheme.

The Independent Non-executive Directors are compensated with the aim to fairly
represent their efforts and time dedicated to the Board and various committee meetings.

The remuneration package represents annual directorship fees.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries, which
is not determinable by the employer within one year without payment of compensation,

other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company,
its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of

the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND/OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 30th June 2012, the interest and short positions of each Director and chief executive
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFQ")), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company under Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model

Code") contained in the Listing Rules were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company at 30th June 2012
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BRBAZARARRDEA
Personal Corporate Family Other
interests interests interests interests
Name of Directors EEng BARERE EERER RE#ER Hitgs
Mr HUI Sai Chung Euaibes Long positions 1 & 15,787,600 202,721,500 (a) — —
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong B Long positions {F & 19,850,400 198,803,500 (b) — —
Madam LIU Sau Lai BEBLL Long positions & & 1,423,000 — — ©
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND/OR EERBBTRAEBREADANEEM
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES EBLERARESZEER HXR
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED (&

CORPORATION (Continued)
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Notes: Pitat
(@ 196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit Limited (“Good Benefit”), a company in @  FZERMHHFZ 1967215000 T5E Good Benefit
which Ever Win Limited (“Ever Win") holds a 45.1% interest (note (c)). In addition, 6,000,000 Limited([ Good Benefit]) # & © Ever Win
shares are held by Ever Win directly. Limited([ Ever Win])#% Good Benefit B %32
O+ RS () o b 6,000,000
BR AR5 i Ever Win BER 158 ©
50,000 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Ever Win are held by Mr HUI Sai Chung, Ever Win BIREE | A1yt &A1 50,000
Mr HUI Sai Chung and his spouse further own 33,957 and 5 class A non-convertible redeemable RAEEEERE - FEREERARBS D
preferred shares of no par value in Ever Win respectively. AR Ever Win AREEENA L AFELEE
FBAR 33957 BB SBR
(b) 196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit, a company in which Evergrow Company by ZEFRMF 21967215000 T3 B Good
Limited (“Evergrow’) holds a 45.1% interest (note (c)). In addition, 2,082,000 shares are held by Benefit’ A ° Evergrow Company Limited
Evergrow directly. ([Evergrow]) %8 Good Benefit B4 2 U+ H
A — a8 (M5 () © 15D » 2,082,000 B & 17
B Evergrow B H5A o
50,000 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Evergrow are held by Mr HUI Kwok Kwong. Evergrow & IR B & | I 7T 2 & 3 AR £ 50,000
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong further owns 30,823 class A non-convertible redeemable preferred shares of BEFEALESE - FEAXLTERES
no par value in Evergrow. Evergrow ABERETA LR ERELRY
30,823 % °
(0) The beneficial interests of the Directors in the share capital of Good Benefit, which held (c) EE Good Beneft(R—ZE——FA=1H
196,721,500 shares of the Company as at 30th June 2012, are as follows: BARDT 196,721,500 I ) IR AR 2 B 2 E
=T
Number Percentage
of shares of holding
Name of Directors EEps ROYE FRESL
Mr HUI Sai Chung AR A 4510 45.1%
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong B 4510 45.1%
Madam LIU Sau Lai BARIL 80 0.8%
Others Hit 900 9.0%
10,000 100.0%
24



DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND/OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION (Continued)

As at 30th June 2012, the following Directors owned interests in non-voting deferred
shares in Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials Limited, which are subject to an option granted

to Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited to acquire the said non-voting deferred
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M #% 2 8 ¥ 2 & FNgai Hing (International)

shares. Company Limited AJEE B il IR TR R D
ZIBIRHE o
Number of non-voting
deferred shares held
FEEREREERNEE
Personal Other
interests interests
Name of Directors EEng BARERE HgEs
Mr HUI Sai Chung ATt A 200,000 50,000())
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong FrEY 200,000 50,000(i)
Notes: T

(i) These shares are held by Ever Win.

(i) These shares are held by Evergrow.

Save as disclosed above and other than certain nominee shares in the subsidiaries of the
Company held by certain Directors of the Company in trust for the Group as at 30th June
2012, none of the Directors and chief executives have any beneficial or non-beneficial
interests in the share capital of the Company and associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

()  FZERMEEver WinfEh o
(i)  ZZERMDAEvergrowiFE ©

FEXABEERARAETEEMERT AR
AEERAARRE THERRREARR
B RZE-ZFRA=TH REEFHE
1% 352 1R R E F B 2 A M TR SRR AR
EFRMEARR LB AELONE &
ERERTRABRARFREBEE(AEE
FHBROIEXVENRE) CBATHERSR
ERREEFHERIATRECERANE
XiEag o
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EFERE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND/OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION (Continued)

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Options” above,

(@)  at no time during the year was the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or chief executives
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or

debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate; and

(b)  none of the Directors, chief executives, their spouses or children under the age
of 18 had been granted any right to subscribe for shares in or debentures of the

Company, or exercised any such right.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

At 30th June 2012, the register of substantial shareholders required to be kept under
Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that the Company had not been notified of any
substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions, being 5% or more of the Company's
issued share capital, other than those of the Directors and chief executives as disclosed

above.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the

year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the Group’s major suppliers are

as follows:
The largest supplier 19%
Five largest suppliers combined 62%

The aggregate percentage of sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers is less
than 10% of the Group’s total sales for the year ended 30th June 2012 and therefore no

additional disclosure with regard to the major customers is made.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of
the Directors own more than 5% of the Company's share capital) had an interest in the

major suppliers noted above.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee provides an important link between the Board of Directors and the
Company's auditor in matters coming within the scope of the group audit. It also reviews
the effectiveness of the external audit and of internal controls and risk evaluation. The
Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr HO
Wai Chi, Paul, Mr CHAN Dit Lung and Mr CHING Yu Lung. The Audit Committee has
reviewed with management the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters including a review of the

annual financial statements for the year ended 30th June 2012 with the Directors.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Directors, at least 25% of the total issued share capital of the Company was held by
the public as at the date of this report.
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EFEHRE

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retires and,

being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

HUI Sai Chung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 21st September 2012
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate governance practices
and procedures which serve as an important element of risk management throughout the
growth and expansion of the Company. The Company emphasises on maintaining and

carrying out sound, solid and effective corporate governance principles and structures.

The Company has complied with the applicable code provisions of the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices as set out in the former Appendix 14 (the “Former CG
Code") of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™) from Ist July 2011 to 31st March
2012 and has complied with all the applicable code provisions as set out in Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report to the existing Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules (the “CG Code") from Ist April 2012 to 30th June 2012, except for the

deviations as mentioned below.

According to the code provision A.2.| of both the Former CG Code and CG Code,
the roles of chairman and chief executive officer (chief executive for CG Code) should
be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. Up to the date of this
annual report, the board (the “Board") of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company has
not appointed any individual to be the chief executive. The roles of the chief executive
have been performed collectively by all the executive Directors, including the chairman,
of the Company. The Board considers that this arrangement allows contributions from
all executive Directors with different expertise and is beneficial to the continuity of the
Company's policies and strategies. Going forward, the Board will periodically review the
effectiveness of this arrangement and considers appointing an individual as chief executive

when it thinks appropriate.

Code provision A4.1 of the Former CG Code stipulates that non-executive Directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. The Company's
independent non-executive Directors were not appointed for a specific term initally but

subsequent service contracts were executed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix |0 of the Listing
Rules as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transaction. The Company
has made specific enquiries to all Directors and all Directors confirmed they have

complied with the required standard of dealings set out therein during the year.

SREARE

TEERER
ARBBARYRHEFEREARERF &
BAARANERGT  %EAREFRRERE
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Corporate Governance Report
EEEGRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board, number of Board meetings and Directors’ attendance

The Company's Board has a balance of skills and experience and a balanced composition
of executive and non-executive Directors. There is no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship between Board members. The Board conducts meetings

on a regular basis and on an ad-hoc basis, as required by business needs. During the year,

Exg

EZEHM EFEEAREZHENE
ARFMESEABIBNRDNESR  mE
PRTESEFHUTESNESTREDE
ESeNECHY BT BE  REX
EtEX/ B HE - ESEUTHIAEE

the Board held a total of five regular board meetings, ten ad-hoc board meetings and one FERUGHNERVARITEE - RER
general meeting. The composition of the Board and attendance of the Directors are set §$ SAARTARTHESSER - TAF
out below: NEEEERR—RREAG - EF8ANK
EEHEHRBOT
No. of No. of
No. of ad-hoc general
regular meetings meetings
meetings  Attendance 15| Attendance B Attendance
Attendants R plexs HRAE SFRB HRRE AERE HEREY
Executive Directors: HITEE
Mr HUI Sai Chung (Chairman) AR (/) 5 5 10 10 | |
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong B it 5 5 10 10 |
(Deputy Chairman and (FIZE#
Managing Director) EEHLE)
Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony ETEET
(Vice Chairman) (BI%E) 5 4 10 10
Mr LAI Kam Wah RpERE
(Deputy Managing Director) (BIEEHEE) 5 5 10 10 | |
Madam LIU Sau Lai BEELL 5 5 10 10 |
Mr NG Chi Ming RERALE 5 4 10 8 | 0
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUFHTEE -
Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul (e 5 5 10 0 | |
Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRixBEst 4 5 5 10 0 |
Mr CHING Yu Lung BmERE 5 5 10 0 | |

The balanced board composition ensured strong independence exists across the Board
and has met Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules to have at least one-third of its members
comprising independent non-executive Directors. At least one of the independent non-
executive Directors has appropriate professional qualifications, accounting or financial
management expertise. The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 4 to 6
to the annual report, which demonstrates a diversity of skills, expertise, experience and

qualifications.
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Composition of the Board, number of Board meetings and Directors’ attendance
(Continued)

The independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term subject to

retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company's Bye-laws.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from the three
independent non-executive Directors in according with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Board has assessed their independence and concluded that all the independent non-

executive Directors are independent within the definition of the Listing Rules.

Role and Function
The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to the executive Directors
and senior management, while reserve certain key matters for its approval. The principal

functions of the Board are:

. to establish the strategic direction for the development of the Company and set

the objectives of the management;

c to approve annual budgets, major funding proposal and investment proposals;

c to decide on matters such as annual and interim results, major transactions,

directors appointment, and dividend and accounting policies; and

. to oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy of internal controls, risk

management, financial reporting and compliance.

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The members of the Board are responsible for preparing the financial statements of the
Company and of the Group. The financial statements are prepared on a going concern
basis and give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group
as at 30th June 2012, and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended.
In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 30th June 2012, the members
of the Board have selected appropriate accounting policies and, apart from those new
and amended accounting policies as disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30th June 2012, have applied them consistently with
previous financial periods. Judgments and estimates that have been made are prudent and

reasonable.

LEBAEE
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BUFNTESHREADAZARABER
- ERSARESE

ARAERE2B=RBUFATESFREL
MANEIRELHCFRBUMRRE - &
FRCAEREZBUM YT EBIHE
BTEEUR EMRAMRTIBIAL -

BERBE
EZTERAKRERRERZRTHOIESERS
EEEAE BEREBIEEZTHIEME
N EEEMIERERRE:

o RUARANEBUBRAMRHTE
BRI

s WAFERE IBEARELRER

s REMFERTHEER BARH E
EZERE RRENEHHREEE

&

s RERNFHEANELE RRERE #
BowELETERRDERNREF o

EZRABHEERENERE
EZRNBAEREARARAEBNN B R
K-BE-T-—FAA=THLEZHBRR
REFBREEANGRY THEERATRBA
AAIEAKENEBRN - RBHEE-F
—ZFRAZTALFENDBRRE  EF
RREEBEENEGHHR  LEERMANA
AHBER(BE=2——F A=+ HLAR
AMBHRRMERBEOH REET S RERR
) - BRBIBAE GG DEFHERSE
AR ©

31

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited 3#E1THR2A 7



32

Corporate Governance Report

SEBARE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements (Continued)

During the period from Ist April 2012 to 30th June 2012, the management provided all
members of the Board with monthly updates in accordance with the code provision C.1.2
of the CG Code.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditor are set out on pages 41 to 42.

Continuing Professional Development

All Directors, namely, Mr HUI Sai Chung, Mr HUI Kwok Kwong, Dr WONG Chi Ying,
Anthony, Mr LAl Kam Wah, Madam LIU Sau Lai, Mr NG Chi Ming, Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul,
Mr CHAN Dit Lung and Mr CHING Yu Lung have participated in continuous professional
development by engaging in business activities beneficial to the Company in their
respective fields, including attending seminar, workshops, conference and courses offered
by professional bodies and self-studying, to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills

50 as to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable training to all Directors for
their continuous professional development. During the year ended 30th June 2012 and up
to the date of this annual report, the Company has arranged to provide the Directors with
briefing on the amendments to the Listing Rules relating to the CG Code and associated

Listing Rules effective on Ist January 2012 or Ist April 2012 and self-studying materials.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities
The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering the liabilities of the
Directors that may arise out the corporate activities, which has been complied with the

CG Code. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Composition

A nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) was
established on 26th March 2012 with written terms of reference in accordance with
the requirements of the Stock Exchange. The Nomination Committee consists of all
independent non-executive Directors and an executive Director. The composition and

attendance record of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

SREARE

REEES
AARHWREZZEEN_T——-F=A
TN BREE AP ARE AR EI AL
REZBEHERBUINTEER 24
TTESMANK - HERKHFELCEDT -

Number of meetings Attendance

attended/Total percentage

Attendants HEE HEERRE R HfER

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) EEEE(ZEELE) 11 100%

Mr CHAN Dit Lung BREkBESRAE /1 100%

Mr CHING Yu Lung RINEER 4 I/1 100%

Mr HUI Sai Chung SR RAsE A /1 100%
Role and Function HERBE

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board (including the skills, knowledge and experience) on a regular
basis and make recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed changes;
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select or
make recommendations to the Board on the selection of, individuals nominated for
directorships; assessing the independence of independent non-executive Directors; and
making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment

or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors.

The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year to assess the structure, size and
composition of the Board. The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year
ended 30th June 2012 to review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,

knowledge and experience) of the Board.
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EEEGRE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Composition

The Company has formulated written terms of reference which were revised on 26th
March 2012 for the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee") in
accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange. The Audit Committee consists
of all independent non-executive Directors. The composition and attendance record of

the Audit Committee are as follows:

BEREEE

A
AARBBH R T2 B EFTHE 2 A0 AR
BZEE([BRZEg ) BREERN_-Z
—ZF=AZF+ BEH -BERZECHREE
BUFMTEREN - FREEGZAKRE
E255>3 N

Number of meetings Attendance

attended/Total percentage

Attendants HEE HESERE KB HE=R

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) MREELTE(ZFEELE) 4/4 100%

Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRIk 4 4/4 100%

Mr CHING Yu Lung RInEERE 4/4 100%
Role and Function AERBE

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to ensure the objectivity and credibility
of financial reporting and internal control procedures as well as to maintain an appropriate

relationship with the external auditor of the Company.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are aligned with the recommendations
set out in “A Guide for Effective Audit Committees” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and Listing Rules. Given below are the main duties of the

Audit Committee:

(a)  to consider the appointment of the external auditor and any questions of its

resignation or dismissal;

(b)  to discuss with the external auditor before the audit commences, the nature and

scope of the audit;

34

Annual Report 11/12 FE#RSE

ENZEIERAARGRYBRE RAEE
IRFZEBUERAEER  ARBEXRBINE
X BIED IR RIFRAIR °

ERERGNBERERESLHTLRNER
H(BHE B RANERES)DE LA RAIAE
MBI - LB BREE RN EREES
m -

(@) ZRIMNEZEEDNR EREEEH M E
B ENRE

(b) MEZTAEFILE AT EINE 2 BED 5T
EZMERBE



Corporate Governance Report

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)
Role and Function (Continued)
(c)  to review the half-year and annual financial statements before submission to the

Board, focusing particularly on:

(i) any changes in accounting policies and practices;

(i) major judgmental areas;

(iify  significant adjustments resulting from audit;

(iv)  the going concern assumptions and any qualifications;
(v)  compliance with accounting standards;

(vi)  compliance with Listing Rules and legal requirements in relation to financial

reporting; and

(d)  to discuss problems and reservations arising from the audits, and any matters
the external auditor may wish to discuss (in the absence of management where

necessary).

For the year ended 30th June 2012, the Audit Committee met four times, in particular, to

review and discuss the followings:

. the auditing and financial reporting matters;

. the appointment of external auditor;

. the establishment of interal control system; and

c the interim results and the annual financial statements.

Each member of the Audit Committee has unrestricted access to the auditors and all

senior staff of the Group.
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EEEGRE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Composition

The Company has formulated written terms of reference which were revised on 26th
March 2012 for the remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee") in accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange. The
Remuneration Committee consists of three independent non-executive Directors and
an executive Director. The composition and attendance record of the Remuneration

Committee are as follows:

FHZESS

AR
ARRBRIEB T REFABE 2 AR R H
WzEe((FMREE ) cREREEN_-F
— AT ABEH - FHEEEH={
BUFATEER UM TEFAN - FHZ
BezARREERLENT -

Number of meetings Attendance

attended/Total percentage

Attendants HEE HESBRE BN HE=R

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) MEELE(ZEELE) 33 100%

Mr CHAN Dit Lung PREKBELE 313 100%

Mr HUI Sai Chung At 33 100%

Mr CHING Yu Lung TRINEELE 313 100%
Role and Function BERBE

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal and transparent
procedures for developing remuneration policies and making recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of the individual executive Directors and senior
management. This includes benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments,
including any compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment.
It takes into consideration on factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time

commitment and responsibilities of Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year to assess the performance
and review the annual salaries and bonus of the senior executives. The Remuneration
Committee held three meetings during the year ended 30th June 2012 to review the
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee and the remuneration packages of

the Directors and the senior management of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
During the year, the nature of the audit and non-audit services provided by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company, and the relevant fee paid and

payable by the Company for such services are as follows:

SREARE

BRE T &

RER - ARBRZHUME IR KEGTER
PRt 2 BREOFERRY  MARAIRZE
BRBENREN 2 ABERDOT :

HK$
BT
Audit services for the Group RASERME 2 E%RHG 1,861,000
Non-audit services including: FEZRBGERE
— review of interim results —EBFEIEE 255,000
— taxation services for the Group — RAEERME 2 HIERY 285,000
— agreed upon procedures on the Group's —REERFEB LM IETRF
annual results announcement 19,000
Total iz 2,420,000
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE tEEREES
Composition A5

A corporate governance committee of the Company (the “Corporate Governance
Committee") was established on 26th March 2012 with written terms of reference in

accordance with the CG Code. The Corporate Governance Committee consists of all

AR KEAZABR-F——4=
— R BRETARE MR REN
RTAZEERR MBI NTEFAN

independent non-executive Directors. The composition and attendance record of the HARKHELRSENT
Corporate Governance Committee are as follows:

Number of meetings Attendance

attended/Total percentage

Attendants HEE HESBERY, R HER
Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) EELCE(ZFESLE) I 100%
Mr CHAN Dit Lung PRIKBESE & I/1 100%
Mr CHING Yu Lung RIngER S [/1 100%
Role and Function BEREBE

The Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for developing and reviewing
the policies and practices on corporate governance of the Group and making
recommendations to the Board; reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management; reviewing and monitoring
the Group's policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and Directors; and reviewing the Group's compliance with the

CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE (Continued)

Role and Function (Continued)

The Corporate Governance Committee meets at least once a year to review the
corporate governance functions. The Corporate Governance Committee held one
meeting during the year ended 30th June 2012 to review the corporate governance policy
in the Group and recommend the training arrangement on corporate governance to the

employees of the Group.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the Group's system of intemal controls and for reviewing its
effectiveness. The management of the Company has established a set of comprehensive
policies, standards and procedures in areas of operational, financial and risk controls
for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition; for maintaining proper
accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial information to achieve a

satisfactory level of assurance against the likelihood of the occurrence of fraud and errors.

For the purpose of further enhancing the internal control systems, the Company has
engaged an external consultant to carry out an on-going project to conduct independent
internal control review and to evaluate major operations of the Group. The Board has
reviewed the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the Company and its

subsidiaries with no material issues noted.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair disclosure and comprehensive
and transparent reporting of its performance and activities. Enquiries and suggestions
from shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) or investors are welcomed, and
enquiries from Shareholders may be put to the Board through the following channels to

the company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary"):

by mail to the Company's head office at Unit 3, 6th Floor, Hopeful Factory Center,
|0 Wo Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong;

2. by telephone at telephone number (852) 2693-1663;
3. byfaxat fax number (852) 2694-0877; or

4. by email at info@nhh.com.hk.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT (Continued)

Annual and interim reports are printed and sent to all shareholders. Announcements are
posted on the Company's corporate website http://www.nhh.com.hk. Constantly being
updated in a timely manner, the website also contains additional information on the

Group's business activities.

The Company encourages its shareholders to attend general meetings to ensure a high

level of accountability and to stay informed of the Group's strategy and goals.

The Company keeps shareholders informed of the procedure for voting by poll in
all circulars to shareholders which are from time to time despatched to shareholders
together with notices of general meetings of the Company. The Company has taken
steps to ensure compliance with the requirements about voting by poll contained in the
Listing Rules and the constitutional documents of the Company. The Board attends the
Annual General Meetings to answer shareholders’ questions. Poll results are published on
the website of the Stock Exchange and are posted on the Company's corporate website

shortly after the meetings.

According to the Company's bye-laws, members holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require a special general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions of

Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT (Continued)

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person (the “Candidate”) for election as a
Director at a general meeting, he/she shall deposit a written notice (the “Notice”) at the
Company's head office in Hong Kong at Unit 3, éth Floor, Hopeful Factory Centre, 10 Wo
Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong. The Notice (i) must include the
personal information of the Candidate as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules
and his/her contact details; and (i) must be signed by the Shareholder concerned including
the information/documents to verify the identity of the Shareholder and signed by the
Candidate indicating his/her willingness to be elected and consent of publication of his/her
personal data. The period for lodgement of the Notice shall commence on the day after
the dispatch of the notice of general meeting and end no later than seven days prior to
the date of such general meeting. In order to ensure the Shareholders have sufficient time
to receive and consider the proposal of election of the Candidate as a Director without
adjourning the general meeting, Shareholders are urged to submit and lodge the Notice
as soon as practicable, say at least fifteen business days prior to the date of the general

meeting appointed for such election.

The Board has established a shareholders communication policy on 26th March 2012
and will review it on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness to comply with the code

provision E.|.4 of the CG Code.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

e
pwec

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Ngai Hing Hong Company
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on
pages 43 to 156, which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at
30th June 2012, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents

of this report.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intemnal control relevant to the
entity's preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the

overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 30th June 2012, and of the Group's
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 2 st September 2012
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Consolidated Income Statement

HEWmR

For the year ended 30th June 2012 B2 = F——F A =1HIFFE

2012 2011
Note HK$’ 000 HK$'000
FiE TR TAT
(Restated)
(&51)
Revenue Yax 5 1,640,416 1,687,687
Cost of sales HEKR 8 (1,498,896)  (1,520,155)
Gross profit EH 141,520 167532
Other income Hep A 6 3,643 3,364
Other gains, net Hitn iz — %A 7 18,384 12,693
Distribution costs AHMA 8 (51,563) (46,520)
Administrative expenses TR 8 (90,687) (83,168)
Operating profit Syl 21,297 53901
Finance income g Al 310 239
Finance costs IsER (10,242) (7.614)
Finance costs, net IEER—%E 9 (9,932) (7,375)
Share of loss of an associated company DEBRELRBENE — (184)
Profit before income tax P A 48 11,365 46,342
Income tax expense BEZ 10 (8,230) (I,161)
Profit for the year ARE T 3,135 35,181
Attributable to: AT AT -
Equity holders of the Company NERE I 1,365 31,102
Non-controlling interests Il g 1,770 4,079
3,135 35,181
Earnings per share for profit attributable to AEERAIRREN
equity holders of the Company during the year G PRS-
(expressed in HK cent per share) (AFRBE)
— Basic —&EX 13 037 842
~ Diluted —#F 13 037 8.42
The notes on pages 53 to 156 are an integral part of these consolidated financial F53% 56 BT AGA KRR RE L
statements. 7o

Details of dividends payable to equity holders of the Company attributable to the profit ENARRR 2 REFHBEHRMIE 12 -

for the year are set out in Note |2.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FEEHKER

For the year ended 30th June 2012 &2 —F—

—EAA= AR

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAT
(Restated)
(831))
Profit for the year REHN 3,135 35,181
Other comprehensive income: Hfhér e e -
Revaluation gain of property, plant and equipment and M - BB RREEEE
leasehold land and land use rights on transfer to Rt RREEREREME
investment properties, net of tax (Note 28(a)) BB 18 Bt eas (PR EE 28(a)) I'15 865
Revaluation gain of an available-for-sale At EMBERE B
financial asset (Note 20) Wz (P EE20) 188 439
Currency translation differences PN =5 7,069 14972
Other comprehensive income for the year AEH RN 7,372 16,276
Total comprehensive income for the year AEGE W BRE 10,507 51,457
Total comprehensive income attributable to: el nREREER -
— Equity holders of the Company —RAARR 8,675 47221
— Non-controlling interests — IS 1,832 4,236
10,507 51,457
The notes on pages 53 to 156 are an integral part of these consolidated financial F53% 156 BN AMALESMBRROE
statements. gg-;zmﬁ o
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

GAREARR
As at 30th June 2012 R =F——F NA=+H
As at 30th June  Asat 30th June As at Ist July
2012 2011 2010
R-B-—F RZT——%F RIT-TF
AA=t+H ANA=1H ‘tH*EI
Note HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
FiteE THERT TET TET
(Restated) (Restated)
(&31) (&51)
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y ER B 16 141,235 149,205 121,740
Leasehold land and land use rights ME 13 R L3 E A 17 15,547 11313 14,700
Investment properties REME 18 53,775 42,626 30,560
Intangible assets B EE 19 — — —
Available-for-sale financial asset A ERHEE 20 1,317 1,129 690
Deferred tax assets EXHIBAE 30 5428 5988 4486
Deposits for acquisition of properties WEmE 2 &E 8,827 8,614 8,125
Prepayments for property, plant and ER S B
equipment and renovation costs RIEBRNR 4,741 1,513 7,129
230,870 220,388 187,430
Current assets MEBEE
Inventories ﬁﬁ py) 281,501 330314 278,846
Trade and bills receivables LGV ES 23 280,928 276615 238,545
Other receivables, prepayments and 3 \‘FIEF'@H&/‘ L BRHR
deposits B 17,326 21,867 22,810
Tax recoverable QEELE 524 625 969
Derivative financial instruments ITHEERMIA 24 233 3,113 [,755
Cash and bank balances B RIRITHER 25 93,349 95826 82,589
673,861 728,360 625514
Total assets BEE 904,731 948748 812944
The notes on pages 53 to 156 are an integral part of these consolidated financial E3E 156 BN RGEMBHRROBES
statements. Ao
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
SeEERER

As at 30th June 2012 R=F—=—#F A =+H

As at 30th June  Asat 30th June As at st July
2012 2011 2010
R-B-—-% RNT——% RIZT-FF
ARA=tH ANA=1+H tA—H

Note HK$’ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
Pt TER TAET TAT
(Restated) (Restated)
(831) (&31)
EQUITY ’am
Capital and reserves attributable to NAIRREGRARFE
the Company's equity holders

Share capital B 27 36,920 36920 36,920
Share premium BRARE 27 62,466 62,466 62,466
Other reserves Hfth it 28 71,414 64,104 47954
Retained earnings RE M 28 276,368 278,695 258,669
447,168 442,185 406,009
Non-controlling interests Il 23,613 22526 20,831
Total equity Enas 470,781 464,711 426,840

The notes on pages 53 to 156 are an integral part of these consolidated financial £53Z 156 AR RGE B RRANEEH

statements. 3o
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

HEAERR/RE

As at 30th June 2012 R=ZF——F XA =+H

As at 30th June  As at 30th June As at |st July
2012 2011 2010
R-ZB-——f R-T—F RIT-TF
AA=t+H ANA=1H +tA—H

Note HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
BT THERT FHET TET
(Restated) (Restated)
(&231) (&251)
LIABILITIES 8
Non-current liabilities ELER=E
Obligations under finance leases MEMERHE — — 235
Deferred tax liabilities BEEVIERE 30 5,400 5674 1,835
5,400 5,674 2,070
Current liabilities mEBE
Trade payables O L ANEN 26 111,032 102,424 97,630
Other payables, deposits received and Hi A - EdGEIE R
accruals BRIRER 15,046 21377 19,524
Obligations under finance leases - current B ERERE - AHEHH
portion 29 — 235 458
Bank borrowings RITEE 29 294,367 343941 252,531
Derivative financial instruments MESMTA 24 2,730 4930 6,272
Tax payable PR 51 5,375 5456 7619
428,550 478363 384,034
Total liabilities wmaf 433,950 484,037 386,104
Total equity and liabilities mrEaRaRE 904,731 948,748 812944
Net current assets FRBEE 245,311 249997 241,480
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBDERE 476,181 470,385 428910
On behalf of the Board RKEXEFE
HUI Sai Chung HUI Kwok Kwong
FitE AFEX
Chairman Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
E B EFREFEITE

The notes on pages 53 to |56 are an integral part of these consolidated financial E3EIS6ENMFAGRAVBRENER

va

>

o

=

statements.
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Balance Sheet

BEERE/ER

As at 30th June 2012 R=F—=—#F A =+H

As at 30th June
W<A=1H
2012 2011
Note HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
BiEE FTER FHET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries MBARIRE 21 62,711 62711
Current assets MBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE Wt Fft B A R 3R 21 100,016 104,590
Other receivables H fth e ik 283 158
Cash and bank balances B e MIRITH 25 245 135
100,544 104,883
Total assets BEE 163,255 167,594
EQUITY fExn
Capital and reserves attributable to AR (S RN R
the Company's equity holders
Share capital R 27 36,920 36,920
Share premium BARE 27 62,466 62,466
Other reserves HithfAfE 28 62,926 62,926
Retained earnings RERR 28 270 4,600
Total equity fatkes 162,582 166,912

The notes on pages 53 to 156 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Balance Sheet
EERER

As at 30th June 2012 R=ZF——F XA =+H

As at 30th June
RAB=1+H
2012 2011
Note HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
BisE FTEx FEIT
LIABILITIES BfE
Current liabilities mEaE
Accruals BIRERA 673 682
Total equity and liabilities BEsREE 163,255 167,594
Net current assets BREEE 99,871 104,201
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAE 162,582 166912

On behalf of the Board

HUI Sai Chung
i
Chairman

EF

The notes on pages 53 to |56 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.

REEFE

HUI Kwok Kwong

PR

Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
B L EREFALIE

F53F 156 AN AGA MBRENEED
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

FEERmBER

For the year ended 30th June 2012 B Z —F——F A=+ HAIFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
AR

Other reserves
Efbite
Avallable-for
-sale financial  Exchange
Share assetreserve fluctuation Non-
Share Share option Capitdl  Revaluation ~ FIEEHE reseve  Retained  controlling
captdl premium reserve reserve e HIEEE EX eamings  interests Total
RE BREE BRERE ANRE  ERERE BE  RORE  REEN FoNER Lk
HKF000  HKPOO0  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKFO000  HKPOOD  HKS000  HK$O00  HKFOO0  HKFO00
TEr  Ter  TEr  TEn TEr  TEr  TEr TR TEn  TEn
At st July 2010, as previously reported RZE-BELA-R  AHER 36920 62,466 364 408 3939 - 245 60 081 4344
Prior year adjustments in ReHuRED BEERAR
respect of change i accounting policy - - - - 718 - - 2618 - 3406
At It July 2010, as restated RIZ-BELA-A(E]) 36920 62,466 364 408 417 - 245 258669 081 426840
Comprehensive income Fal
Proft for the year RERH - - - - - - - 31,102 4079 35,181
Other comprehensive income Eftira i
Revaluation gain of property, 0% BRRREEEE
plant and equipment and leasehold TR HEREERS
land and land use rights on transfer RENE BRBERNG
to investment properties, net of tax (BizE28(2))
(Note 28(a)) - - - - 865 - - - - 865
Revaluation gain of an available-for-sale THHENEEE BllE
financial asset (Note 20) (HzE20) = = = = = 49 = = = 439
Currency trandlation diferences ENZR - - - - - - 14815 = 157 14972
Total comprehensive income FalinsE = = = = 865 49 485 3o 406 514
Transactions with owners BHEELR5
Employees share options scheme: [EEREMRE S
~ value of employee services -EEREER - - 3l = = = = = = 3l
200972010 fl dividend paid H-TEN/
ZE-REEABRE - = = = = = = (7384) = (7384)
20101201 | interim dhidend paid #H=3-3/
“2—ERRERE - - - - = = - () )
Dividends paid to non-controling nterests %4 F3EE IR 2R & - - - - - - - - (2380) (2380)
Acquiston of a subsidiary YiE-HEAR - - - = = = = = (181) 3)
Tota transactons vith owners HEEIRHEE = = 3] = = = — (107 sl (1358)
At 30th June 2011 RZZ—E/A=TH 36920 62,466 415 408 5562 439 57260 278695 056 4TI
The notes on pages 53 to 156 are an integral part of these consolidated financial EREIS6ENNTRESHBRANEES
statements. e
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GEHEREEBR

For the year ended 30th June 2012 B2 = F——F A =1HIFFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARBFRLEDH
Other reserves
]
Availablefor
-salefinancial ~ Exchange
Share assetreserve  fluctuation Non-
Share Share option Cpitdl ~ Revaluation L E reserve  Retained  controlling
apil  premum  reseve  reseve  resene  BIHEE EX  eamings  interests Totl
Bx  BAEE RREGE ErEE  EfER fE RBRE REEN FANER 4%
HKS'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK§000  HK§'000
Tén  THT TR TEn  TEn  TEn  THx 0 TR TER  TER
As | uly 2011, as previousy reported RE——51A-B HHER 36920 62466 415 408 5,163 49 57,260 276,481 109 462278
Prior year adjustments in respect of RETRREG At ERER
change in accounting policy - - - - 419 - - 2014 - 243
As IstJuy 2011, as restated R-E——£rA-R(E) 36920 62466 415 408 5,582 49 57260 278695 105 464711
Comprehensive income Fals
Proft for the year KERH - - - - - - - 1,365 1,770 3135
Other comprehensive income Eirala
Reveluzton gan of property, plant 0% BERRBREE LY
and equipment on transfer to investment REMERESAERR
properties,net of tax (Note 26(a)) L E
(K1 28(2) = = = = 115 = = = = 115
Revaluation gain of an avalkble-for-sale MEHERREE,
fiancial asset (Note 20) Efsla(iEE0) = = = = = 188 = = = 188
Cumency translaion differences i - - - - - - 7007 - [y 7089
Total comprehiensie ncome falwag - = = = 115 188 7007 1,365 1832 10307
Transactions with owners EfRELRS
2010201l ividend peid #H-%-%/
“5—FERERE = = = = = = = (369 = (365
Dividends peid tononcontrling nterests X PH AR ZRE - - - - - = = — %0 (1380
Dispose of a subsidiry (Note 31(c) HE-MBRAE3I0) = = = - = = = = 635 635
Totaltransacions with owners BRI GHE = = = = = = = (369) (Z T
At 30th june 2012 R=E-7A=1H 36,920 62466 415 408 5697 627 64,267 276,368 3613 410781

F53FE 156 AN AGA MK RRNEED

e

The notes on pages 53 to 156 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GAHERER

For the year ended 30th June 2012 B Z = F——F N NA=1+HIFFE

2012 2011
Note HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
P &E TEn TAET
Cash flows from operating activities REXBZREN
Cash generated from/(used in) operations mERBmEE/ (FR)ZRE 31(a) 83,902 (13,561)
Hong Kong profits tax paid EHEBNEH (5,210) (3,446)
PRC income tax paid BEEPEIEH (2,702) (8,091)
Net cash used in operating activities REXBHRERFRS 75,990 (25,098)
Cash flows from investing activities REEXBZBRER
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE  HEKR (8917) (26,165)
Purchase of investment properties BEREME — (5415)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEYE « BE MEEER
plant and equipment 31(b) 275 245
Prepayments for property, plant and ME - BB KRB EREETARNK
equipment and renovation costs (4,741) (1,513)
Acquisition of a subsidiary W bE — B A E] = 93
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—HEAE 31(c) 29 —
Net cash used in investing activities REXBMERAZFRE (13,354) (32,755)
Cash flows from financing activities MEXK B SR
New bank loans HIBIRITER 81,971 48852
Repayment of bank loans ERRITER (88,423) (27,702)
(Decrease)/increase in trust receipt loans EREBIEER R ) /1 (45,938) 65,841
Repayment of capital element of finance leases BERREHEERBN (235) (458)
Interest element of finance lease payments BEHEEN SR (2) (15)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests S F ISR R (1,380) (2,380)
Dividends paid FRBRE (3,692) (11,076)
Interest received EHRFLE 310 239
Interest paid on bank borrowings BRRITEERNS (10,604) (7.599)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities MEEBH(ER)/ EE2FERS (67,993) 65,702
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents ~ R&RRESEE 2 (D), /1M (5,357) 7,849
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FzHe kR eEHE 31(d) 93,233 82,589
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEEXREETE 1,082 2,795
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRZEE kA eEH 31(d) 88,958 93,233

The notes on pages 53 to 156 are an integral part of these consolidated financial E53% |56 BN AGE SRR LY

statements. 3o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL INFORMATION

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of plastic
materials, pigments, colorants, compounded plastic resins and engineering plastic

products.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The address
of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HMI I,

Bermuda.

The Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, unless
otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements have been approved for

issue by the Board of Directors on 2|st September 2012.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently

applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.]  Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment properties,
available-for-sale financial asset, financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss, which are carried

at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated

financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

MR RM T
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REE -

ARRRRBEREAMc—HBAERE
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House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HMI I,
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FRIEC RIMIE - KRG BB |REK A
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—ZFEAAZT-BREERIE
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TXEERBLSFHBREAFRZE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(@) Effect of adopting amendments/revises to standards and

interpretations

0

In December 2010, the HKICPA amended Hong Kong
Accounting Standard (“HKAS") 12, “Income Taxes", to
introduce an exception to the principle for the measurement
of deferred tax assets or liabilities arising on an investment
property measured at fair value. It introduced a rebuttable
presumption that an investment property measured at fair
value is recovered entirely through sale. This presumption is
rebutted if the investment property is depreciable and is held
by within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the

investment property over time, rather than through sale.

The amendment is applicable retrospectively to annual periods
beginning on or after Ist January 2012 and the Group has
early adopted this amendment retrospectively for the financial
year ended 30th June 2012. Prior to the amendment, deferred
taxation on investment properties at fair value is measured
to reflect the tax consequences of recovering the carrying
amounts of investment properties through use. The Group
has reassessed the business models of the Group's investment
properties located in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") individually. The carrying values of
investment properties held by the Group are expected to be

recovered through sales.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBIRRMEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved) 2 EEEHHEBE#)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2. HREEE)
(@) Effect of adopting amendments/revises to standards and @) RMEEARZRRBZET/
interpretations (Continued) EHNTE(E)
()  (Continued) 0 (&)
The amendment has been applied retrospectively and the W EKENE
comparative figures for 201 | have been restated to reflect the A TE2&E5 =%
change in accounting policy, as summarised below. ——FRHBRETFTIN
REEHRELE
BEEWMT -
The effect of the adoption of HKAS 12 (Amendment) is as BB B ENSE
follows: PEACCHP:S):)-%
e
Effect on consolidated balance sheet RREERERZVE
As at As at As at
30th June 30th June I'st July
2012 2011 2010

R-B——F RT——F RZZT-ZF
AB=+H A~A=tH +H—H
HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000
TERT FET FTAT

Decrease in deferred tax liability ERETIEEERD (5,047) (2,433) (3,406)
Increase in retained earnings RE R FIE N 4,620 2,014 2,628
Increase in revaluation reserve ERRA il 427 419 778
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Contived) 2~ EEEHHRBEH)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 HREEE)
(a) Effect of adopting amendments/revises to standards and (a) RNHERRRB 2B/
interpretations (Continued) EHNTE(E)
(i) (Continued) W (&)
Effect on consolidated income statement ReRfERzYE
For the For the
year ended year ended
30th June 30th June
2012 2011
Bz BE

2= -2
AA=tE AA=+E

IEfFRE HEFE
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TER THET
Decrease/(increase) income tax expenses BB LR/ (3 m) 2,606 (614)
Increase/(decrease) in profit attributable to equity /A & IR R FEAE & F
holders the Company i,/ CRd) 2,606 (614)
Increase/(decrease) in basic earnings per share NERR R EFZ
for the profit attributable to equity holders BRERBM(BREN)
of the Company (HK cents per share) i,/ () 0.71 (0.17)
Increase/(decrease) in diluted earnings per share A AIAR R FE(L @A 2
for the profit attributable to equity holders SREERM (BREN)
of the Company (HK cents per share) i,/ () 0.71 (0.17)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(@) Effect of adopting amendments/revises to standards and

interpretations (Continued)

(i)

The following amendments/revises to standards and
interpretations are mandatory for the financial year ended
30th June 2012. The adoption of these amendments/revises
to standards and interpretations does not have any significant

impact to the results and financial position of the Group.

HKFRSs (Amendment)
SRBEBMBRELER (BFTAX)

HKFRS | (Amendment)

FEMBIRRMEE

2 FESHBEHMES)
21 HREEE)
@) FEMHEARZRBZEBT/
BT E(E)

iy WNTHEARREHN
B/ EHMVBERE
E_T-ZFXA
STHIENHBEE
KA RALEHE
B RZENEBIE
MHARBEZRER
BMRRT EEAY
%,

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010
“E-TEZRBBUBREER g

Severe Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed Dates for

First-time Adopters

BRMBEREERSE | RUEFTA)

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)
ERUMBREERNETR(ETA)

HKAS 24 (Revised)
BAEGFTERIE 245 (KLIEFT)

Hong Kong International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee (“HK(IFRIC)")
—Int 14 (Amendment)

R (ERNBREREZES)
—ﬁ%%hﬁﬂ@ﬂK)

BERTBER RN B RIRAEMRET B 5

Disclosures - Transfers of Financial Assets

MBEEZERNRE

Related Party disclosures
BELBE

Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement

REEEERNBNR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved) 2 T ESHBREHES)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
The following new standards, amendments to standards and (b) MNATAELAMELIENEZE

(0)

58

interpretations have been issued but are not effective for the year
ended 30th June 2012 and have not been early adopted:

HKFRS | (Amendment)
BRMBEREERSE | R(EFTA)

HKFRS 7 (Amendment)
BARAMBREENE 7 RBITLX)

HKFRS 9
BANBHREERE IR
HKFRS 10
BRMBREERE 105
HKFRS ||
BAMBERELERS |15
HKFRS 12
BAMBERELERS 125
HKFRS 13

BT BREERE (35

HKAS | (Amendment)
BERGTERSE | RK(BFTAX)

HKAS 19 2011)
BEGHENE 9% (ZF——)
HKAS 27 (201 1)

BRGHENE 27HR(ZF—)
HKAS 28 (2011)
BEQtERE 28R (=T ——)
HKAS 32 (Amendment)

EAGERE DN RUBIIR)
HK (IFRIC) - Int 20

ER(BARMBREREZEE) —2BF 2050

HKFRSs (Amendment)
SREBMBRELER (BFTAX)

Effective for the Group for annual period beginning on Ist July 2012
Effective for the Group for annual period beginning on Ist July 2013

2] HREEE)

“E-—FX AZTHILH
BIBEE E A ER - ¥
ERIMETNRE  TEIR
B

Government Loans 2

BHEE?

Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 2

BHEERBRECEHNEE?

Finandial Instruments *
SR T A"

Consolidated Financial Statements *

HARFBHRE?

Joint Arrangements 2
ARz

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 2
REMEERNERRE?

Fair Value Measurement 2

AFEHE

Presentation of tems of Other Comprehensive Income '
Hipir e EHEMZR |

Employee Benefits *
BT

Separate Financial Statements ?

B R

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
REtERAIRAEHEANKE?

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities *

BHEERMEAGBNEE

Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine *
BRTRIN A P BR ) AR AR AR 2

Annual Improvement 2009-201 | Cycle ?
“EENFE_T—FRYNFENRE?

HAEE T —F+A-HRNFREFNER
HAEE T =F+tA - BENFREFNER

: [
2 2
> Effective for the Group for annual period beginning on Ist July 2014 3 BAEE-T-NE+L A—BROERBEN
& 4

Effective for the Group for annual period beginning on Ist July 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)

The Directors anticipate that the adoption of other new standards,
amendments to standards and interpretation will not result in a

significant impact on the results and financial position of the Group.

2.2 Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the

Company and all of its subsidiaries made up to 30th June.

(a)  Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies generally accompanying a
shareholding of more than one half of the voting rights. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are de-

consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure

consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

@

Subsidiaries (Continued)

The Group uses the acquisition method of accounting to account
for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on acquisition
by acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest's proportionate share of the recognised amounts of acquiree's

identifiable net assets.

Goodwill is initially measured as the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred and the fair value of non-controlling interest
over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If
this consideration is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the

subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised in income statement.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment
losses (Note 2.9). Cost is adjusted to reflect changes in consideration
arising from contingent consideration amendments. Cost also includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and

receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

®)

©

Changes in ownership interests

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions - that s,
as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-

controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in
the entity is remeasured to its fair value, at the date when control
is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised

in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(@

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of
between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for by using the equity method of accounting and are
initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or
decreased to recognise the investor's share of the profit or loss of the

investee after the date of acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified

to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group's share of its associate’s post-acquisition profits or losses is
recognised in the income statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income. The cumulative post-acquisition movements
are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest
in the associate, including any long-term interest that, in substance,
form part of the Group's net investment in the associate, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or

constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2

2.3

Consolidation (Continued)

(d)  Associates (Continued)
Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associate
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interests in the associate.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of the associate have been changed where necessary to

ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in associates are

recognised in the income statement.

Segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the interal
reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the

Executive Directors of the Company that make strategic decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation

@

)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency™).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"), which is the Company's functional and the Group's

presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are

recognised in the income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash
and cash equivalents are presented in the income statement within
“finance income or cost”. All other foreign exchange gains and losses

are presented in the income statement within “other gains/losses”.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets, such
as equities classified as available-for-sale, are included in other

comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

©

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are

translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i)  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are

translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not
a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the

transactions); and

(iify  all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other

comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are

recognised in equity.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.5  Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the

items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to the income statement during the financial period in which they are

incurred.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences amortisation from
the time when the land interest becomes available for its intended use.
Amortisation on leasehold land classified as finance lease and depreciation
on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their

costs to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold land classified as finance lease  Shorter of the remaining lease

term or useful life
Buildings 2% -2.5%
Leasehold improvements Shorter of the unexpired lease

term or 20%

Machinery and equipment 12.5%
Fumiture, fixtures and office equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Tools and moulds 20%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. An asset's carrying amount
is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying

amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amount of the relevant assets and are recognised in the

income statement.

If an owner-occupied property becomes an investment property carried at
fair value, it is reclassified as investment property. The difference between
the fair value and the carrying amount of the property at the date of transfer
is recognised in revaluation reserve. Subsequent changes in the fair value of
the investment property are recognised in the income statement as part of

other gains/losses.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as
property, plant and equipment, and its fair value at the date of reclassification

becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold land and land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost represents
consideration paid for the rights to use the land on which various plants
and buildings are situated for a period from 46 to 50 years. Amortisation of
leasehold land and land use rights is calculated on a straight-line basis over

the period of leases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation
or both, and that is not occupied by the Group, is classified as investment
property. Investment property comprises land held under operating leases
and buildings held under finance leases. Land held under operating leases
are classified and accounted for as investment property when the rest of the
definition of investment property is met. The operating lease is accounted

for as if it were a finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related

transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment properties are carried at fair value,
representing open market value determined annually by independent
external professional valuers. Fair value is determined based on active
market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location
or condition of the specific asset. Changes in fair values are recorded in the

income statement as part of other gains/losses.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset's carrying amount only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the income statement during

the financial period in which they are incurred.

Gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is determined by
comparing the proceeds and the carrying amount of the investment property

and is recognised in the income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.8
()

(i

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the fair value of the Group's share of the net identifiable assets
of the acquired subsidiary at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on
acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill is
tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed.
Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying

amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the goodwill arose identified

according to operating segment.

Technical know-how

Technical know-how comprises the acquired rights to use certain
technologies for the manufacture of plastic products. Acquired
technical know-how is capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred
to acquire and bring to use. These costs are amortised over their

estimated useful lives of five years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.9

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet available for use are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for

possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount to the extent that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the

income statement.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is
declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated financial

statements of the investee's net assets including goodwill
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair

value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and available-for-sale. The

classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were

acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial assets at

initial recognition.

@

®)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets
held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives
are classified as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges.
Assets in this category are classified as current assets if expected to be
settled within 12 months of the balance sheet date; otherwise, they

are classified as non-current.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
They are included in current assets, except for these with maturities
greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group's loans and receivables
include ‘trade and bill receivables', ‘other receivables and deposits’ and
‘cash and bank balances' in the consolidated balance sheet (Notes 23

and 25).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

(c)  Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of the
other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless
the investment matures or management intends to dispose of the

investment within 12 months of the end of the reporting period.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the
trade-date - the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at
fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the income statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-
sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any

provision for impairment.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are presented in the income statement within
“other gains/losses” in the period in which they arise. Dividend income from
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the income
statement as part of other income when the Group's right to receive

payments is established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.10 Financial assets (Continued)
Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities classified

as available-for-sale are recognised in other comprehensive income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the
accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are included in the

income statement as gains and losses from investment securities.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognized in the

income statement when the Group's right to receive payment is established.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in
the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or

realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1l Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of

financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group
of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficutty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where observable data
indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with

defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss

is recognised in the income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is

recognised in the income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.11

2.12

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss - measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or
loss - is removed from equity and recognised in the income statement.
Impairment losses recognised in the income statement on equity instruments

are not reversed through the income statement.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair values.
The method of recognising the resulting gains or losses depends on whether
the derivative is designated and qualified as a hedging instrument, and if so,

the nature of the item being hedged.

As the Group's derivative financial instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting, changes in the fair value of these derivative financial instruments
are recognised immediately in the income statement within other gains/

losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of finished
goods comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related
production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the

ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold
or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection of
trade and other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets.

If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with

banks and bank overdrafts, if any.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. Financial
liabilities (including trade payables) are initially measured at fair value, and
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. An equity instrument is any contract that does not meet the
definition of financial liability and evidences a residual interest in the assets of

the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs, net of tax, directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a

deduction from the proceeds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.17

2.18

2.19

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the income statement over the period of

the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months

after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying assets are
capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged

to the income statement in the period in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is
recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company, its subsidiaries and its associate operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
retumns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of

amounts expected to be paid to the relevant tax authorities.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from initial recognition of an
asset or a liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or

the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associate, except for deferred income tax
liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will

not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net

basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.20 Employee benefits

@

Pension obligations

The Group participates in several defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes. A defined contribution scheme is a pension plan
under which the Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. The Group has no further legal or constructive obligations to

pay further contributions once the contributions have been paid.

The Group participates in the mandatory provident fund scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group
and its relevant employees makes monthly contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employee’s relevant income, with a maximun of
HK$1,000 to HK$1,250 per month, as appropriate, as defined in the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. The contributions are

fully and immediately vested in the employees.

The Group also contributes to certain defined contribution schemes
for its employees in the Mainland China. Contributions are made by
the Group on a monthly basis to these state-sponsored retirement
plans based on a percentage of the relevant income of the relevant
employees. The Group has no further obligations for the actual
payment of pensions beyond its contributions. The state-sponsored
retirement plans are responsible for the entire pension obligations

payable to retired employees.

Contributions made are recognised as employee benefits expenses
when they are due and are not reduced by contribution forfeited by
those relevant employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully
in the contributions. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset
to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments

is available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

)

(©

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leaves are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liabilities
for annual leaves as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the balance sheet date. Employee entitlements to sick leave and

maternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation
plan. The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted, including any market performance conditions;
excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance
vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time period);
and including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example,

the requirement for employees to save).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.20 Employee benefits (Continued)

©

(@

Share-based compensation (Continued)

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of options that are expected to vest. The total expense is
recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all
of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At each balance
sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting conditions.
It recognises the impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in

the income statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium

when the options are exercised.

Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of services rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made. Liabilities of bonus plan are expected to
be settled within twelve months and are measured at the amounts

expected to be paid when they are settled.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future

operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of

obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is

recognised as interest expense.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.22 Lleases

()

(i)

Operating leases (as a leasee)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are charged to the income statement on a straight-

line basis over the period of the lease.

Finance leases

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment. Leases of
property, plant and equipment where the Group has substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’'s commencement at the
lower of the fair value of the leased asset and the present value of the

minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance
charges. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges,
are included in current and non-current liabilities. The interest
element of the finance cost is charged to the income statement over
the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest

on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.23

2.24

Financial guarantee contract liabilities

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially at their fair values
and are subsequently measured at the higher of (i) the amount initially
recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
the income statement over the period of the relevant liabilities and (i) the
amount of which the Group is obligated to reimburse the recipient under

the financial guarantee contracts.

Revenue and income recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable
for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary course of the Group's
activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and

discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity
and when specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's activities as
described below. The Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking
into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the

specifics of each arrangement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.24 Revenue and income recognition (Continued)

225

()

(i)

(i)

()

Sales of goods
Sales of goods are recognised when products have been delivered
to the customer, the customer has accepted the products and

collectability of the related receivables is reasonably assured.

Provision of logistic services
Revenue from the provision of logistic services, including freight

forwarding services, is recognised when services are rendered.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the

effective interest method.

Rental income
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease

period.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as a

liability in the Group's and the Company's financial statements in the period

in which the dividends are approved by the Company's shareholders for final

dividend and Board of Directors for interim dividend.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk
(including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest rate risk, and
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management
policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to

minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

Management regularly monitors the financial risks of the Group. The use
of financial derivatives to hedge certain risk exposures is governed by the
Group's policies approved by the Board of Directors of the Company in
order to manage those risks. The Group does not use derivative financial

instruments for speculative purposes.

(a)  Forejgn exchange risk
The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the PRC with
transactions mainly settled in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"), Renminbi
(“RMB™) and US dollar (“USD"). Foreign exchange risk arises when
future commercial transactions or recognised assets or liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the entity's functional currency.
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to USD and RMB. Since the HK$ is
pegged to USD, management are of the opinion that the exchange

rate risk exposure arising from USD is relatively insignificant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

@

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

Management has a policy to require group companies to manage
their foreign exchange risk against functional currency. It mainly
includes managing the exposures arise from sales and purchases made
by the relevant group companies in currencies other than their own
functional currencies. The Group also manages its foreign exchange
risk by performing regular reviews of the Group's net foreign
exchange exposures and has entered into certain foreign exchange
contracts to manage foreign exchange risks. As at 30th June 2012, the
Group had certain outstanding forward foreign currency contracts
mainly to sell/purchase US dollars, details of which have been
disclosed in Note 24. Certain of the Group's receivables, cash and
bank balances, trade payables and borrowings were also denominated
in foreign currencies, details of which have been disclosed in Notes
23,25, 26 and 29.

At 30th June 2012, if HK dollar had weakened/strengthened by 5%
against RMB, with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have been HK$1,667,210 (201 I: HK$2,171,000)
higher/lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on
translation of foreign currency-denominated financial assets and
liabilities. The Directors however are of the opinion that any changes
in fair value of the Group's forward foreign exchange contracts, as
a result of any reasonable changes in exchange rate between HK
dollar and US dollar as at 30th June 2012 and 201 |, would have no

significant financial impact to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates. The Group has no
significant interest-bearing assets except for the cash at bank, details of
which are disclosed in Note 25. The Group's exposure to changes in
interest rates is mainly attributable to its borrowings, details of which
are disclosed in Note 29. Borrowings carry at floating rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest rate risk whereas those carry at fixed

rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

The Group will review whether bank borrowings bearing fixed or
floating rates should be drawn from time to time with reference to
the trend of changes in interest rates. The Group also uses certain
financial derivatives to manage its interest rate risk, details of which

have been disclosed in Note 24.

As at 30th June 2012, if the interest rates had been 50 basis points
higher/lower, with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit for
the year would have been HK$420,000 (201 1: HK$411,000) higher/
lower, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest income on cash
at bank net off with higher/lower interest expense on floating rate

borrowings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

©

(@

Price risk

The Group is exposed to commodity price risk in relation to its plastic
materials which is largely dependent on the oil price. The Group
closely monitors the price of its raw materials in order to determine

its pricing strategies.

Credit nisk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The
carrying amounts of cash at bank, trade and bills receivables, deposits
and other receivables, derivatives financial instruments and available-
for-sale financial assets included in the consolidated balance sheet
represent the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to

its financial assets.

Substantially all of the Group's cash at bank are deposited in major
financial institutions located in Hong Kong and the PRC, all derivatives
financial instruments are also entered into with these financial
institutions, which management believes are of high credit quality.
The Group has a policy to limit the amount of credit exposure to
any financial institution and management does not expect any losses

arising from non-performance by these counterparties.

The Group also has policies in place to ensure that sale of products
are made to customers with an appropriate credit history and the
Group performs periodic credit evaluations of its customers. Normally
the Group does not require collaterals from trade debtors. As at 30th
June 2012, the Group has made certain deposits for acquisition of

properties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@

Credit risk (Continued)

Management makes periodic collective assessment as well as
individual assessment on the recoverability of trade and other
receivables (including deposits made) based on historical payment
records, the length of the overdue period, the financial strength of
the debtors and whether there are any disputes with the relevant
debtors. The Group's historical experience in collection of trade
and other receivables falls within the recorded allowances and the
Directors are of the opinion that adequate provision for uncollectible
receivables has been made in these consolidated financial statements.
The Directors are also of the opinion that deposits are made to
credit worthy parties and do not expect non-performance of the

counterparties.

As at 30th June 2012, the Company had provided guarantees
in respect of banking facilities made available to its subsidiaries
amounting to HK$323,200,000 (201 I: HK$372,370,000). Credit risk

in connection with such guarantees is considered to be minimal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(€

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient
cash and cash equivalents and the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities. Due to the dynamic
nature of the underlying businesses, the Group aims to maintain

flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available.

The Group's primary cash requirements have been for additions
of and upgrades on property, plant and equipment, settlement of
borrowings, payment for trade and other payables, and payment for
operating expenses. The Group mainly finances its working capital
requirements through a combination of internal resources and bank

borrowings.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure it maintains sufficient cash balances
and adequate credit facilities to meet its liquidity requirements in the

short and long-term.
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FEMBRRME

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

()

Liguidity risk (Continued)

The Group measures and monitors its liquidity through the
maintenance of prudent ratio regarding the liquidity structure of the
overall assets, liabilities, loans and commitments of the Group. The
Group also maintains a prudent level of liquid assets and committed
banking facilities to ensure the availability of sufficient cash flows to
meet any unexpected and material cash requirements in the ordinary
course of business. As at 30th June 2012, the total banking facilities
made available to the Group amounting to HK$521,139,000 (201
HK$516,633,000) of which HK$323,200,000 (201 I: HK$372,370,000)
was being utilised by the Group.

The table below analyses the Group's and the Company's financial
liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance
sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flow, including
interests payments computed using contractual rates, based on the
earliest date on which the Group or the Company can be required
to pay. For the purpose of maturity analysis, the maturity date of bank
borrowings with a repayable on demand clause is based on agreed
schedule repayment set out in the loan agreements, disregarding
the repayment on demand clauses. Taking into account the Group's
financial position, the Directors do not consider that it is probable
that the banks will exercise their discretion to demand immediate
repayment. The Directors believe that such bank borrowings will be
repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in

the loan agreements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBIRRMEE
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MBEBREERE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3 HERBEEE)
(e)  Liguidity risk (Continued) () RHELERE)
Within Between Between
| year |and2years 2and5 years Total
—£x —EZ@MFA MELER B

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
F#n  FERT  TER  FER

Group £
At 30th June 2012 R-_ZE——%A=+H
Trade payables EHREMNK 111,032 — — 111,032
Other payables and accruals BN R RERER 12,359 — — 12,359
Bank borrowings RIEE 285,366 8,819 2,206 296,391
Derivatives financial instruments fTHEeMIA - - — —
Total e 408,757 83819 2,206 419,782
At 30th June 201 | RZZE——F A=+H
Trade payables BHEMAR 102,424 — — 102,424
Other payables and accruals HinER R RERER 17,635 = = 17,635
Bank borrowings RITIEE 326,171 4,246 16,845 347,262
Obligations under finance leases MEMEEE 237 — - 237
Derivatives financial instruments fTHEemMIA 134 = = 134
Total e 446,601 4246 16,845 467,692
Company DF
At 30th June 2012 R-ZZE——FXA=+H
Accruals BIREM 673 — — 673
At 30th June 201 | RZFE——FA=1H
Accruals HiRER 682 = = 682
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FEMBRRME

ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal

capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in
the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payments to

shareholders, issue new shares or obtain new bank borrowings.

The Group also monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. This ratio
is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as
total borrowings (include current and non-current borrowings as shown in
the consolidated balance sheet) less cash and bank balances. Total capital is
calculated as “equity”, as shown in the consolidated balance sheet, plus net
debt.

The table below analyses the Group's capital structure as at 30th June 2012
and 201 I:

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BBEREEE)
3.2 Capital risk management 32 EXEBEE
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's AEENESERHE RREX

BRERLE  URBRRME
#&%D%EWE A AR
R @ RENERERARESR

AEEEREARE  TRELHE
REMNEBELFE - BT KL
FRERERE  A5EJRGAE
TRTFREMREEE « BITHR
FEBHMBITER -

AEEMBABELRERHEER -
e b R IR AR (GG RARR AR A AET
B EBFEARER(BRERES
BEABRKRMIIMES LIS E
FTORERENRE &S - BEX
Rl#ED | (A BERBRMT)
InERRE

RZE——FR_F——FH
=TH AEEZBELEAT

2012 2011
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TER FET
(Restated)
(&=51)
Total borrowings (Note 29) BEE(EE29) 294,367 344,176
Less: Cash and bank balances (Note 25) B R KRS (HEE25) (93,349) (95,826)
Net debt B 201,018 248,350
Total equity erEn 470,781 464711
Total capital MR 671,799 713,061
Gearing ratio BRAGALE 30% 35%
The decrease in gearing ratio during the year ended 30th June 2012 was REBE-Z-——_F A=THLF

mainly resufted from the decrease in the total borrowings during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MR RM T

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BEEREES)
3.3 Fair value estimation 33 AFEEGE

According to HKFRS 7, financial instruments measured in the balance sheet
at fair value are required to disclose the fair value measurements by level of

the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities (level 1)

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or

indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2)

c Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable

market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3)

The carrying amounts of the Group's current financial assets, including
cash and bank balances, trade and bills receivable and deposits and other
receivables, and the Group's current financial liabilities including current
borrowings, trade payables, other payables and accruals approximate their

fair values due to their short maturities.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on
quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. A market is regarded as
active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and
those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on
an arm's length basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held
by the Group is the current bid price. These instruments are included in level
l.

=
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BBEREE®)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 33 RAFEEHE)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market
(for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use-of observable
market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity-
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument

are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market

data, the instrument is included in level 3.

There were no significant transfers of financial assets between level | and

level 2 fair value hierarchy classifications.

As at 30th June 2012, the Group's available-for-sale financial asset and

WHRNERTHEENERMIA
(BRSO TESHIR)NA
TEEABEFEET o HER
BEMATERTSEE(WE) -
BE VKB BNEEMS o 105t
E-SRmIANAREBEMTENAM
BERBARABREE  AZe
BMIATAELE -

W—ES S BEAB AR
BEMSHE  ARESRIANA
£3E -
£IR5IBLAREERSEL
RSB EENEANE -

R-ZE——FA=1H "  ~&E

ZARHEMBRERITESHT
ACSBEFIBERMIA - AT
ARBE-T-—FAA=tAL
FENFIEERMIANEHE -

derivative financial instruments are categorised as level 3 financial instruments.
The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for the year
ended 30th June 2012.

Available-for- Derivative

sale financial financial

assets instruments

AftHeE o1& Total

HKEE ERMIA B

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

TER TER TER

Opening balance HIAER 1,129 (1,817) (688)
Losses recognised in profit or loss RiEm R — (680) (680)
Gains recognised in equity RER TR 188 — 188
Closing balance Bk i e 1,317 (2,497) (1,180)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgement used in preparing financial statements are continually

evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including

expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related

actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a

material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next

financial year are discussed below.

(@)

Useful lives, residual values and depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

The Group's management determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment
with reference to the estimated periods that the Group intends to derive
future economic benefits from use of these assets. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant
and equipment of similar nature and functions. Management will adjust the
depreciation charge where useful lives or residual values vary with previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-

strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives and actual
residual values may differ from estimated residual values. Periodic review
could result in a change in depreciable lives and residual values and therefore

depreciation expense in the future periods.

4
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FEMBRRME

4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

®)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets including property, plant and equipment and leasehold
land and land use rights are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been determined based on
value-in-use calculations or fair value less costs to sell. These calculations

require the use of judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that may indicate
that the related asset values may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount,
being the higher of fair value less costs to sell and net present value of future
cash flows which are estimated based upon the Continued use of the asset
in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
preparing cash flow projections including whether these cash flow projections
are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management in assessing impairment, including the discount rates or the
growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially affect
the net present value used in the impairment test and as a result affect the
Group's financial position and results of operations. If there is a significant
adverse change in the projected performance and resulting future cash flow
projections, it may be necessary to take an impairment charge to the income

statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

©

@

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The fair value of each investment property individually is determined at
each balance sheet date by independent professional valuers by reference
to comparable market transactions and where appropriate on the basis
of capitalisation of the net rental income/net income, after allowing for
outgoings and in appropriate cases provisions for reversionary income
potential. These methodologies are based upon estimates of future results
and a set of assumptions as to income and expenses of the property and
future economic conditions. The fair value of each investment property
reflects, among other things, rental income from current leases and
assumptions about rental income from future leases in the light of current
market conditions. The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any cash

outflows that could be expected in respect of the property.

Impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment in receivables based on an
assessment of the recoverability of receivables. This assessment is based on
the credit history of its customers and other debtors and the current market
condition. Provisions are made where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the receivables may not be collectible. The identification of
impairment in receivables requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying amount of the receivables and impairment

is recognised in the period in which such estimate has been changed.

MR RM T

4  BAEHMEERAEE)

(©

(9)

PR REYRZ L FIEE

BREMEZ RTETING — 4
SRER B ERFEMELE
ARz mERS  HREEELT
BFHeREFRERTEAR
BT U8Bt MeERcER
HAFFECEE RSB - 1t
ENETIRERHRRER 2 fh5t
REHMERIMAREEER 2 ]
& BEEMFEZ D FEERBRE
BN e W RIZ B RIS
ARBEHOHSWEMIEZBRR
F - @i AFHETRBRYER
HA BRI 2 RE R ©

JER B E

AEBERBERUFATREREE
AHEIEHAERRE - —EEMHRE
G B BN BR R A e R e T
B - RISEHEE - SRR KR
EABRNAE LA - ERSzE
REREMHABERR - MZER

REREE BN SRR - BHEE
WHHEREENLRERX

99

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited FE{TER A



100

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(€

@

Wiite-down of inventonries to net realisable value

The Group writes down inventories to their net realisable value based
on an assessment of the realisability of inventories. Net realisable value of
inventories is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and variable selling expenses. These
estimates are based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer taste and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycle. Write-downs on inventories
are recognised where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
value of the inventories may not be realised. The identification of write-
downs requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
value of inventories and write-downs of inventories is recognised in the

period in which such estimate has been changed.

Fair value of denvative financial instruments

The fair value of derivative financial instruments which are not traded in
an active market is determined by using valuation techniques. The Group
uses its judgement to select an appropriate valuation method and makes
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the
balance sheet date. The valuation models require the input of subjective
assumptions, including forward foreign exchange rates, risk free rates and
market volatility. Changes in subjective input assumptions can materially

affect the fair value estimate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

©

Income taxes and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions. Judgement
is required in determining the provision for income taxes in each of these
jurisdictions. There are transactions and calculations during the ordinary
course of business for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and

deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary differences and
tax losses are recognised when management considers it is likely that future
taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences or
tax losses can be utilised. When the expectations are different from the
original estimates, such differences will impact the recognition of deferred
income tax assets and income tax charges in the period in which such

estimates have been changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION Wz R D HEHR
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$ 000
TERr T

Turnover BRH

Sales of goods HESm 1,639,990 1,687,434
Provision of logistic services REMRRE 426 253
1,640,416 1,687,687

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of plastic
materials, pigments, colorants, compounded plastic resins and engineering plastic

products.

The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM") has been identified as the
Executive Directors of the Company. Management has determined the operating
segments based on the reports reviewed by the CODM that are used to assess
performance and allocate resources. The CODM considers the business from the
operations nature and the type of products perspective, including the trading of
plastic materials (“Trading”), manufacturing and sale of colorants, pigments and
compounded plastic resins (“Colorants”), manufacturing and sale of engineering
plastic products (“Engineering plastics”) and other corporate and business activities

("Others").

Each of the Group's operating segments represents a strategic business unit that
is managed by different business unit leaders. Inter-segment transactions are
entered into under the normal commercial terms and conditions that would also
be available to unrelated third parties. Information provided to the CODM is

measured in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MR RM T

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Contined) 5 WERIBERN#)
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments for BET——F A=THILFERH
the year ended 30th June 2012 is as follows: LERKEARREZIZIRENHE
BT
Engineering
Trading  Colorants plastics Others Group
BZ EGE IRER Hity iy 3
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TERr T#n T TERr TET
Tumover EEH
— Gross revenue ~DEREE 1,058,108 374,868 247,446 2,608 1,683,030
— Inter-segment revenue — D EEHEE (15,906) (14,280) (12,428) — (42,614)
Revenue from external customers ~ SMEF% P Uit 1,042,202 360,588 235,018 2608 1,640,416
Segment results DEEE (45,253) 34,128 18,997 13,425 21,297
Finance income #p s 54 234 16 6 310
Finance costs HBER (7,283) (1,384) (1,510) (65) (10,242)
(Loss)/profit before income tax B AT (E548) /i Al (52,482) 32,978 17,503 13,366 11,365
Income tax expense BIBEX (8,230)
Profit for the year RERM 3,135
Non-controlling interests R (1,770)
Profit attributable to equity N ERR S
holders of the Company 1,365
Other information: HuEHR :
Additions to non-current assets EmEEEL N
(other than financial instruments ~ (BREFE T AR
and deferred tax assets) BERIBEEIN) 459 4,255 8,647 297 13,658
Depreciation of property, Y ER S
plant and equipment e 455 7,419 8,057 1,362 17,293
Amortisation of leasehold MELH Rt
land and land use rights Lk 3 33 200 32 79 344
Provision for/(reversal of) FERERE/
impairment of inventories (M=) 1,579 267 (96) (2,432) (682)
Provision for/(reversal of) B SRR E
impairment of trade receivables £/ (BE) — 274 (92) — 182
Unrealised fair value loss on ITHEeMIARER
derivative financial instruments NHEER 680 — — — 680
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FEMBRRME
5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 WEKkIHERE)
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments as R-E-—FRA=THARHLERER
at 30th June 2012 is as follows: ERREZAZIBENDERDMT -
Engineering
Trading  Colorants plastics Others Group
% EeH IRZR Hfty rEE
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TER TER TER TER TER
Segment assets AEEE 362,093 301,613 173,534 67,491 904,731
Total assets BEE 904,731
Segment liabilities NEAE 80,737 33,378 21,953 3,515 139,583
Borrowings fE& 229,435 17,284 45,727 1,921 294,367
Total liabilities BEE 433,950
104
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FEMBIRRMEE

5  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 WaERkoHERE)
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments for BE_Z——F A=THILFERH
the year ended 30th June 201 | is as follows: RERRERREZAZFIBRENHE
BT
Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
g5 F6H  TiREH Hity A&HE
HK$ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000
FET FET TET TET TR
(Restated)
(&)
Tumover e
— Gross revenue — DR BHE 388,226 466,638 518621 2171 2375656
~ Inter-segment revenue — D EFEHEE (281,878)  (156964)  (249,127) — (687,969)
Revenue from external customers ~ SMER% P Ui 1,106,348 309,674 269,494 2171 1,687,687
Segment results NEEE 8,033 20,179 26,897 (1,208) 5390
Share of loss of an DEBERT
associated company EBEAE — - — (184) (184)
Finance income # s 53 184 2 — 239
Finance costs HBER (4.877) (1,335) (1,334) (68) (7,614)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRBAE A (B1E) 3,209 19,028 25,565 (1,460) 46,342
Income tax expense BES M (1,161
Profit for the year AERH 35,181
Non-controlling interests JEE GRS (4.079)
Profit attributable to equity AR R (RS A
holders of the Company 31,102
Other information: HiER :
Additions to non-current assets JEmEEEE N
(other than financial instruments (RemIAR
and deferred tax assets) BERIBEEIN) 6,203 473 23342 1,086 35362
Depreciation of property, I ER S
plant and equipment nE 312 8,395 4014 1,230 13,951
Amortisation of leasehold MET Rt
land and land use rights L k- 3 77 197 2 78 384
(Reversal of)/provision FERERER)/
for impairment of inventories i) (127 85 (167) 122 (87)
Provision for/(reversal of) B o RWHRE
impairment of trade receivables 2§ /(%[ 229 (162) — — 67
Unrealised fair value gain on fTEemIA
derivative financial instruments AERATERE (2,700) — — — (2,700)
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FEMBRRME

5  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments as

at 30th June 201 | is as follows:

K@k oEERE)
RIE——FAA=tERBGERL
BRREZANZIIREDBERNT

Engineering

Trading Colorants plastics Others Group

= EEE  IRRBH Hith REHE

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$O000  HKPO000  HK$ 000

FA&T FAET TET FET FAT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(E51) (E31) (&B51)

Segment assets DEEE 387,632 270932 228,068 62,116 948,748
Total assets BEE 948,748

Segment liabilities HEEE 87,860 26,114 23,135 2752 139,86
Borrowings &8 225,161 22,892 91937 4186 344,176
Total liabilities =R 484,037

The entity is domiciled in Hong Kong. The revenue from external customers
attributed to Hong Kong for the year ended 30th June 2012 is approximately
HK$986,956,000 (201 I: HK$1,057,547,000), and the total of its revenue from
external customers from other locations (mainly the PRC) is approximately
HK$653,460,000 (201 I: HK$630,140,000).

At 30th June 2012, the total of non-current assets other than financial instruments
and deferred tax assets (there are no employment benefit assets and rights arising
under insurance contracts) located in Hong Kong is approximately HK$ 124,514,000
(2011 HK$126,506,000), and the total of these non-current assets located
in other locations (mainly the PRC) is approximately HK$99,611,000 (201 I:
HK$86,765,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMFRFRMEE
OTHER INCOME 6 HtlA
2012 2011
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FExT FET
Rental income e A 3,643 3,364

Outgoings in respect of investment properties amounted to approximately

HK$139,000 (201 I: HK$125,000).

OTHER GAINS, NET

REWME Z BB A £4139,0008 7T

(ZZ——% : 125000/ 7T) °

7 Rt - FE

2012 2011

HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

TER TET

Fair value gains on investment properties (Note |8) REMEH R TEY S (G 18) 13,073 3,093

Derivative financial instruments fTHEEMIA
— forward foreign exchange contracts and interest - FHEEBERBZINERBEH

rate swap contracts held for trading R EREHEH

— unrealised —-XRER (680) 2,700

— realised -BER 4,958 2,584

Net exchange gains INEME F 1,153 4316

Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 31(c)) HE B A EBE(HE3I() (120 —

18,384 12,693
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S AB S HERE
8  EXPENSES BY NATURE 8 RUEEIZEX
2012 2011
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
THET TET
Cost of inventories sold excluding manufacturing costs HEFERA(TBREEEKRR) 1,433,890 1,459,329
Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights (Note 17)  #8& 1-ith & 13t {50 F i 8 (P 5E 17) 344 384
Auditor's remuneration B S 2,391 2,132
Depreciation: e
— Owned property, plant and equipment —BEWX  BERRE 16,951 13,438
— Property, plant and equipment under -REREEERALYE
finance leases WifE kR 342 513
Provision for impairment of trade receivables B S EMTUREERE 182 67
Reversal of impairment of inventories FEREERRTD (682) (87)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant HENE  BEREEZ

and equipment BB/ (W) 289 (55)
Employee benefit expenses, including EERMX L (BREZEME)

Directors’ emoluments (Note 14) (5 14) 97,960 91,345
Operating lease rentals in respect of land and buildings TIRBFEEHERS 8,327 13,243
Repairs and maintenance expenses BIERRERX 3,513 3,707
Transportation and packaging expenses ERRBERAX 20,151 20,019
Travelling and office expenses EREPAERX 8,090 1,547
Utility expenses KERX 12,098 12,272
Other expenses Hit&R 37,300 25,989
Total cost of sales, distribution costs HEMK « D HKARITH

and administrative expenses puk k] 1,641,146 1,649,843
Representing: R&:

Cost of sales HEKA 1,498,896 1,520,155
Distribution costs A 51,563 46,520
Administrative expenses TR 90,687 83,168
1,641,146 1,649,843
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FEMBIRRMEE

9  FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 9 HMBKENEAR
2012 2011
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
THERx FHET
Finance income: B Fs i 25
| Sestiensiombicse CROERMEMA 10— =)
Finance costs: HBER -
— Interest on bank borrowings wholly repayable —FRLFREHERCFITEE
within five years ZHE (10,604) (7.599)
— Interest element of finance leases - R EHEMNE N ) (15)
— Net exchange gains of financing activities —REEB 2 INEW R 364 —
(10.242) (7,614)
Finance costs, net IBER-FE (9,932) (7,375)

[0 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (201 1: 16.5%) on

the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on the Group's subsidiaries

established and operate in Mainland China has been calculated on the estimated

assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation as applicable to the relevant

subsidiaries.

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income statement represents:

BB >
BERNSRIREF A ERT AN
BREADZTABR(ZF——F B
DZTRER)FERE - FEBBAIR
BAREBRPERMKIREE 2B
DR AFE R ER B A B B
BLAZBRABEAE -

FRMERZHPATA -

2012 2011
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
TER TRT

(Restated)
(&30
Current tax: REEHE

Hong Kong profits tax EENEHR 3,400 1,945
PRC corporate income tax B RS 4,255 6,930
Under-provision in previous years NEFERETR 213 638
7,868 9513

Deferred tax (Note 30) RIEBIE (M5 30) 362 1,648
8,230 1,161
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FEMBRRME
10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

110

The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the theoretical

amount that would arise using the Hong Kong profits tax rate as follows:

BEXHE)
AEBBERBADEN 2 HIEERER
AEBNBH  HEMAEZBHTE
ZERWT

2012 2011
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
THET TET
(Restated)
(E51)
Profit before income tax BREL AR A 11,365 46,342
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% (2011: 16.5%) EHE 165%(ZF——F : 165%)
ATEZHR 1,875 7,646
Effect of different tax rates in Mainland China RN AR R 2 2 1,265 2,064
Income not subject to tax mARD WA (2,837) (247)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes AR 2 2 1,522 1,497
Tax losses not recognised AERZ B EE 5,964 621
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses FRNERERHEER 91 (807)
Under-provision in previous years NEFERETRE 213 638
Reversal of tax losses previously recognised AR B RSB R — 250
Recognition of tax losses previously not recognised RUARIARER R EE — (1,950)
Others it 319 1449
8,230 116l
LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE Il ARIRFEEESE

COMPANY

The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt with in the financial

statements of the Company to the extent of HK$638,000 for the year ended 30th

June 2012 (201 I: profit of HK$6,681,000).

Annual Report 11/12 FERE

BE-_ZT-—--A=+tHLFE
ARRAIMBREZAAIRRESEE
1B 56380008 T(— T ——F: K7
6,681,000787T) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBIRRMEE

12 DIVIDENDS 12 RE
2012 2011
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TERr TR
Interim, paid, of Nil (201 |: HK1.0 cent) per ordinary share R HRRR
(ZF——% : 1.078{l) — 3,692
Final, proposed, of Nil (201 I: HK1.0 cent) per ordinary share TR ARHRL S
(ZF——%: 10/8(b) — 3,692
— 7,384
Notes: Pt
(@)  Atmeetings held on 27th February 2012, the Directors resolved not to declare any interim @ RIE-—E-_A-Tt+tHBIZER
dividend for the six months ended 3 Ist December 201 |. b EEERATRBEZ——F 1=
R=1—BIEAEAE K ER K
8 o

At a meeting held on 2 st September 2012, the Directors resolved not to delare any final
dividend for the year ended 30th June 2012.

At a meeting held on 25th February 201 |, the Directors declared an interim dividend of
HKI.0 cent per share, totalling HK$3,692,000 for the six months ended 3Ist December
2010, which was paid during the year ended 30th June 201 |, and has been reflected as an
appropriation of retained earnings for the year ended 30th June 2011.

At a meeting held on 27th September 2011, the Directors proposed a final dividend of
HKI1.0 cent per share, totalling HK$3,692,000, which was paid during the year and has been

reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings for the year ended 30th June 2012.

(b)

R-B-=EAAT-ABTZEH
b EERATREESR 25 A
=B EREREARBRE -

%‘?——E‘H—ﬂiaﬁﬁ%”‘ 5
t EEZEHREBE_T-ZEF =
H:Jr—EIJtMIH/)E%éEF,HﬂHxE\
B 1078l » 2£3,692,000/8 7T © HLIBR
BEREE-T——F A=1TAHLF
ERNEf - YERBEZZ——FXA
=T BHIEFEZREERFDE o

“E—H5NAA-TLRABHTZER
J: CESRBRERBRESEKRI0E
il 263,692,000/ 7T © WLIEKEER
AEEAXN  YERBE-Z——F
RNAZTBLEFEZRBENDHRE -
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FEMBRRME

I3 EARNINGS PER SHARE 13
Basic
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in

issue during the year.

BRER

-2
GIRERBF TR A 7 BIR & MR
NERDETE BB 2 EFIEGE -

2012 2011
(Restated)
(B71)
Profit attributable to equity holders N AR AR A
of the Company (HK$'000) (F%T) 1,365 31,102
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue FNEBTLRER 2 METF 9 369,200,000 369,200,000
Basic earnings per share (HK cents per share) BREARRN (FREWL) 0.37 842
Diluted #E

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of dilutive potential ordinary
shares arising from the Company's share options. Dilutive earnings per share for
the years ended 30th June 2012 and 201 | equal basic earnings per share as the

exercise of the outstanding share options would be anti-dilutive.

FTEEREERMNE  BHERTER
Bz IETAEELAE  UREME
AEBBR NI ARTTREREETHE
BeRBEE-_T— X A=ZtHKZ=
Z——FAA=THLREFEE BT
ERITEEREAREEZE  AUMH
BFEESREFRANHENGRER

B -

|4 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING DIRECTORS' 14 EERAXL(EREEMHE)

EMOLUMENTY)

2012 2011

HK$’ 000 HK$'000

TR FET

Wages, salaries and other allowances T& - 5o R H 2R 93,537 87,261

Pension costs RREKAR 4,423 4,053

Share-based compensation expense PARR D T B Bl 2 — 31

97,960 91,345
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MR RM T

I5 DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS 15 EEREEEBAEZHE

(a)  Directors’ emoluments @@ EFHE
The remuneration of each of the Directors of the Company for the year BE-T——FRA=THILFE
ended 30th June 2012 is set out below: BuUEZ MEMT
Salaries, other Employer’s
allowances contribution
and benefits to pension
inkind  Discretionary scheme
30 bonuses {=E21)
Fees Hitri2Eh BITERE Rike Total
Name of Director Espg e REWANG AL 2R B

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK§'000  HK$'000
TRR TER TR TRR TER

Executive Directors HiTES

Mr HUI Sai Chung iR s 650 2,890 159 28] 3,980
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong FEYEE 650 2,890 159 281 3,980
Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony BEFERET — 2,247 159 185 2,591
Mr LAl Kam Wah RRESE — 2,247 159 124 2,530
Madam LIU Sau Lai BEBUT — 1,573 159 158 1,890
Mr NG Chi Ming RERLE — 1,495 159 179 1,833
Independent By

Non-Executive Directors FHITES

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul AEEEE 200 — = — 200
Mr CHAN Dit Lung Bkt 150 — — — 150
Mr CHING Yu Lung Rt 150 — — — 150
Total g 1,800 13,342 954 1,208 17,304
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FEMBRRME

I5 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS |5 EERSEEEASZME(®)

(Continued)
(a)  Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EFEHE(E)
The remuneration of each of the Directors of the Company for the year BE_T——F X A=THLEFE
ended 30th June 201 | is set out below: BUEEIMENT
Salaries, other Employer's
allowances contribution
and benefits to pension
inkind  Discretionary scheme
i - bonuses ExY
Fees Hih28 BITRE BRE Total
Name of Director B wE  REDIS fOTEAL i ]
HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000
FAET TAT TAT TAT THT
Executive Directors HITES
MrHUI Sai Chung Fautbites 650 2820 — 273 3743
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong e bvies 650 2820 — 273 3743
DrWONG Chi Ying Anthony B TRfEL — 2,178 10 158 2,346
Mr LAI Kam Wah RipERE — 2178 — 104 2282
Madam LIU Sau Lai BAERT — 1523 88 51 1,762
MrNG Chi Ming REALE = 1,339 10 161 1,510
Independent B
Non-Executive Directors FHiTES
Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul fRsEE 200 — — — 200
Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRixEELE 150 — — — 150
Mr CHING Yu Lung BmaEks 150 — — — 150
Total k| 1,800 12,858 108 1,120 15,886
No Director waived any emoluments during the year (201 I: Nil). No RAFENTBESHERS M
emoluments have been paid by the Group to any Director as an inducement (ZE——F  B) RAFE
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office NAKEREX N FEMES MR
during the year (201 1: Nil). MekkEE=RBUZAHECT

——F &)

114

Annual Report 11/12 FERE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

I5 DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)
(b)  Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group
for the year include four (201 I: four) Directors whose emoluments are
disclosed in the analysis presented above. The emoluments paid and payable

to the remaining individual during the year were as follows:

FEMBIRRMEE

EEREEEEAEZHME &)

LERBHMAL

TEER ERUGEHEMAL
B M (ZT——F: O RE
2 HEMEER EXEFZAHF
RE - I —RsSHEMALR

FEEZEHEMFENT -
2012 2011
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TET FET
Salaries, other allowances and benefits in kind M Ep 2B REDHE 2,037 1972
Discretionary bonus BBTEAL 329 612
Pension costs HEINCAD PN 244 236
2,610 2,820

The emoluments of the afore-mentioned individual fell within the band of
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 (201 1: HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000).
No emoluments have been paid to the five highest paid individuals (including
Directors and other employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining

the Group or as compensation for loss of office (201 I: Nil).

TEALZMEREA-—ARTE
T-BRE=AEATL(ZT——
£ _AATETRATE=BE
BT ZBERN - REBWER L
BAL(BREZSREMER)ZMN
B & (R I A SRR EBAL
ZBE(CE——F :8)-
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FEMBRRME

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

l6 Y% BMERRE

Fumiture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and Machinery and office
buildings Leasehold and equipment Motor Tools and
BELH  improvements  equpment  ffl £E vehicles moulds Total
LEF HEWFRE HERRE RELERE A2 IAREA %
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
AR TER TERL TER Thn AR AR
At st July 2010 R-2-TEtA-A
Cost BA 119,376 8786 168218 20046 8372 3954 875
Accumulated deprecition githg (25876) 73%5)  (4IB) (17.775) (5827) (30l (07012)
Net book amount BEHE 93500 1,391 21,095 2271 254 938 121,740
Year ended 30th June 2011 H2-Z-—FrA=1A
LR
Opening net book amount BEEHE 93500 1,391 21,09 2271 2545 938 121,740
Addtions S - 19242 13492 68 214 5 35563
Additions from acquistion EmakE-HEAT
of a subsidiary - 83 - 129 - - 212
xchange diferences EREE 3190 2 784 gl 9 6 4114
Transfer from investment BRARENE
properties (Note 1) (& 18) 3050 - - - - - 3050
Transfer to investment BREZRENE
properties (1333) - - - - - (1333)
Disposalsrite-off HE /M - - (46) (59) (89) (4 (1%)
Depreciation i (2814) (609) (6213) (1067) (1) (137) (13951)
Closing net book amount BREEFE 95533 20128 711 2041 3563 808 149,205
At 30th june 2011 S o
Cost 8 124440 2745 162759 19032 925! 1921 344448
Accumuated deprecition Zithe (28907) (6917)  (135647) (16991) (5.669) (L113)  (19549)
Net book amount BHFE 95533 20128 711 204 3563 808 149,205
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FEMBIRRMEE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 6 Y% BERRE#E)
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and Machinery and office
buildings Leasehold and equipment Motor Tools and
AELH  improvements equpment  Hfi - £EB vehicles moulds Total
kBT RENREE ARLRE RBOERE hE IARER L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn
Year ended 30th June 2012 HEZ %3
RA=TRILER
Opening net book amount BREHE 95,533 20,128 711 2041 3583 808 149,205
Additions £m - 6,067 2976 1,102 216 69 10430
Bxchange differences EREE 1,289 18 9l 3 45 2 1,676
Transfer from investment eRERENE
properties (Note 18) (HzE 18) 864 - - - - - 864
Transfer to ivestrment BRTRANZ
properties (2934) - - - - - (2934)
Disposalsiwrite-off HE /i - (44)) - (3) (86) () (564)
Disposals of a subsidiary HE—HEAT
(Note 31(0) (MzE31(0) - (64) - (85) - - (149)
Depreciation it (2,868) (4952) (7,19) (935) (1210) (133) (17293)
Closing net book amount HEREHE 91,884 20,755 13,184 2119 2548 745 141,235
At 30th june 2012 R-B-—%#AA=1A
Cost s 124,008 3209 168,566 19,209 8,156 1975 354013
Accumulated depreciation ZiftiE (32,124) (1,344) (145,382) (17,090) (5,608) (1230) (r2778)
Net book amount REE 91,884 20755 3184 2119 2548 745 141,235
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GEMBRRMEE
|6 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 6 ¥ BRERREE)
Net book value of leasehold land and buildings are analysed as follows: ME+Ti BT REFESFTAT -
Group
As at 30th June
&8
RAA=1A
2012 2011
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
THERT FHET
Leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong, held on: EEBRECHET W RET
Leases of between 10 and 50 years THEERATEZHE 39,057 43312
Buildings in the PRC, held on: EHBEFEZET :
Leases of between 10 and 50 years TEERTFZHE 52,827 52221
91,884 95533
(a)  Depreciation expense of HK$13,489,000 (201 1: HK$10,476,000) has been (@) ¥ E B F134890008 (= &

included in cost of sales, HK$408,000 (201 I: HK$394,000) in distribution
costs and HK$3,396,000 (201 I: HK$3,081,000) in administrative expenses.

As at 30th June 2012, the net book amount of property, plant and (b)

equipment pledged as security for the Group's banking facilities amounted to

approximately HK$23,475,000 (201 I: HK$23,724,000).

As at 30th June 201, the cost and accumulated depreciation of property, ©

plant and equipment held by the Group under finance leases amounted to
approximately HK$2,736,000 and HK$ 1,653,000 respectively.

Annual Report 11/12 FERE

——F 1104760008 L) EB1E
TE 85 & B A 0 4080008 TL(Z
——% 13940008 L) EBEES
PN ] 3,396,000 (=T ——
£ 3,081,000 7T) B BIEETHR
X e
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7 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS

|7

The Group's interests in leasehold land and land use rights represent prepaid

operating lease payments and their net book amounts are analysed as follows:

eV RME

HELHWR T ERE
AEBRBEE T R0 AE #S
REENEERERE  EERFES
B UNNE

Group
£M
2012 2011
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
TiERx FAET
At beginning of the year F9) 1,313 14,700
Transfer from investment properties (Note 18) HEREREME (T 18) 4,395 =
Transfer to investment properties (Note |8) EREREME (I 18) — (3.646)
Exchange differences bE 5 =58 183 643
Amortisation B (344) (384)
At end of the year FR 15,547 11313
Geographical analysis: B AT
Leasehold land in Hong Kong, held on: EEBRHECHELSH
Leases of between 10 and 50 years TEERATFZHE 1,114 144
Land use rights in the PRC, held on: FERREIRE 2 Tt FRfE -
Leases of between 10 and 50 years THEERATFCHE 14,433 10,169
15,547 1313

As at 30th June 2012, the net book amount of leasehold land and land use rights

pledged as security for the Group's banking facilities amounted to approximately

HK$2,853,000 (201 I: HK$2,870,000).

R-ZBE-——&XA=1+0 BELHR
it {55 PR AEBR T FE 49 2,853,000 T (=
T——1F 28700008 L) B K T iR
11 BASERBHRIREE -
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FEMBRRME

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18 REWX
Group
%m
2012 2011
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
TEn TAET
At beginning of the year F4) 42,626 30,560
Addition 120 — 5415
Exchange differences bE N = HE 286 —
Transfer from property, plant and equipment and leasehold BB 1% - BB k%M
land and land use rights B S £ 4t o £ b A 2,934 4,979
Revaluation gain of property, plant and equipment WX BENMREBEBE L
and leasehold land and land use rights on Rtk AEERERENE
transfer to investment properties (Note 28(a)) 2 B fhias (P15 28(a)) I'15 1,629
Fair value gains on investment properties (Note 7) BEWE 2 AT EWE (FFE7) 13,073 3,093
Transfer to property, plant and equipment and BREME - BERREBN
leasehold land and land use rights ME i+ A (5,259) (3.050)
At end of the year FR 53,775 42,626
(@)  The investment properties were revalued at 30th June 2012 by Chung, Chan @) AEEERIREMEN-_ZT——F

& Associates, an independent professionally qualified valuer. Valuations were

based on current prices in an active market.

(b)  As at 30th June 2012, the fair value of investment properties pledged (b)

as security for the Group's banking facilities amounted to approximately

HK$15,207,000 (201 I: HK$10,672,000).

Annual Report 11/12 FERE

NA=TRABYEXRGEMEE
REEEREMSMNERERE

o

—\ ~
el /l

it

N_E——FXA=1H " KEY
¥RMEFEL 152070005 5(=
T ——14F 06720008 7L)E &
BTHRT AAEERBRIE
B

7



m _

18 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
©

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV RME

The Group's interests in investment properties at their book values are

RENER#)
(

a)

) AREREENFE S KEE

analysed as follows: AT
Group
£H
2012 2011
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
TER TET
In Hong Kong, held on: EEBRE -
Leases of between 10 and 50 years TEERTFZHE 46,660 31,130
In PRC, held on: ERERA
Leases of between 10 and 50 years TEERTF2HE 7,115 I'1,496
53,775 42,626

The future aggregate minimum rentals receivables under non-cancellable

operating leases are as follows:

(d) BEFIHENEEHE KKK
BRKESFENT :

Group
£

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$' 000
TER TAT
Not later than one year —ER 1,584 2,118
Later than one year and not later than five years —FREMERRE 39 907
1,623 3,025
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FEMBRRME

19 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19 |EEE
Group
3L
2012 2011
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TEx FAT
Technical know-how s 30psIE
Cost A 4,000 4,000
Accumulated amortisation RETEH (2,000) (2,000)
Accumulated impairment ZEPRE (2,000) (2,000)
Net book amount REVFE — —
During the year ended 30th June 2011 and 2012, the Directors reviewed the REBE-FT-——RZT—ZF A=+

carrying amount of the technical know-how and considered that the carrying
amount of the asset would exceed its recoverable amount and no reversal of

impairment was made accordingly.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET

21

eV RME

20 THEENKEE

Group

3
2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$' 000
FTER TR
At Ist July RtHA—H 1,129 690
Net gains transfer to equity BRI 188 439
At 30th June RANA=1H 1,317 [,129

Available-for-sale financial asset represents a 3.6% equity interest in an unlisted

company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The amount is denominated in
HK dollar.

INVESTMENTS IN AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM
SUBSIDIARIES

@

®)

Investments in subsidianies - Company

RN ERBEERRNERBR LR
SR LEMRRZED 2 ZHNE
@ o R BNBTREN

2l EUHBLAARERRE

(@) HEBLARE—2 4]

Company
YNl
2012 2011
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
THEx FTAT
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LT - AR 62,711 62,711

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 30th June 2012

are set out in Note 35 to the financial statements.

Amounts due from subsidiaries - Company
The balances are unsecured, interest free and are repayable on demand. The

amounts are mainly denominated in HK dollar.

RZE——FA=1H " KQ7A]
ZEEZMBRRFBENGS WK
WRMITESS -

) BRIERTH -1

ZERYEER  2ORBERIZE
KBR WFEUBRTRELNL -
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GFEMRRME
22 INVENTORIES 2 =FE
Group
8
2012 2011
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TER FET
Trading stocks BHEBEE 159,124 168237
Raw materials JR#} 92,069 131,892
Finished goods S m 30,308 30,185
281,501 330,314

23

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included in cost of sales in the

consolidated income statement amounted to approximately HK$1,499,578,000

(201 1: HK$1,520,242,000).

Reversal of provision for inventories amounted to HK$682,000 (201 |: HK$87,000)

for the year was included in cost of sales in the consolidated income statement.

Inventories amounting to HK$219,444,000 (201 I: HK$265,382,000) were held

under the trust receipts bank loan arrangements (Note 29).

Y ZFEERARE H4 5 1,499,578,000%5
T(ZZE——4% : 1,520,242,00058 7T ) °

7N & B K F S B [682,0008 (= F
——F 1 870008 L) Z FERELERE
TRERERERAEHER AT AR °

& 2194440008 (= & — — & :

265,382,000 7T ) 2 T E R E = T K IR
TERZ ZHE (FE29) o

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 23 EBEFEURREWERE
Group
&5
2012 2011
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FTET T
Trade receivables 5 YK 261,774 245901
Less: provision for impairment of receivables W FEUGEOR B B (2,282) (2,115)
259,492 243,786
Bills receivable EKRE 21,436 32,829
280,928 276,615
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

23 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continved)

The carrying amount of trade receivables are denominated in the following

23

eV RME

BEZRURRERRE &)
B RYGHREEA TS % REAL

currencies:
Group

2012 2011
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TER TET
HK dollar BT 109,343 105,875
Renminbi AEE 127,906 120,124
US dollar e 24,525 19,902
261,774 245,901

The carrying value of trade receivables approximates their fair values. ZHRER EmEREATERY -

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables as the

Group has a large number of customers.

The majority of the Group's sales are with credit terms of 30 to 90 days. The

remaining amounts are on letter of credit or documents against payment. The

ageing analysis of trade receivables by invoice date is as follows:

HRARERAREZRFE  UE
RN REE BN S Ak

AEBABHHEENEERA=TE
NtHH ERUERARSINRRERR
BT - BEHRNFTILRER 2RE DT

JUINE
Group
%m

2012 2011
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TER TET
Below 90 days 0-90H 239,254 220939
91 - 180 days 91-180 H 15,609 19,751
Over 180 days 83 180 H 6,911 5211
261,774 245,901

The credit quality of trade receivables neither past due nor impaired has been

assessed by reference to historical information about the counterparty default rates.

The existing counterparties do not have significant default in the past.

TEBHLABENE HREKNEEL
ERERSERBMUNTBRLEMBE
BRETHE - AAZH T BRYEE

AR o
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e MR T
23 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continved) 23 BERURKREWRE®)
As of 30th June 2012, trade receivables of HK$77,449,000 (201 1: HK$63,162,000) R-ZT-——FXA=1TH BHEUX

were past due but not considered to be impaired. These relate to a number of 77,449,000 7T ( ZF——%F : 63,162,000

independent customers for whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing B RERHEYERE - HEFEY
REEARIRBBRERCHENBLE

F e hZBHRIFORERATMT

analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

Group
%8
2012 2011
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TER TET
Past due by B
| - 30 days I-30H 50,668 39,145
31 - 60 days 31-60 H 13,499 13,475
Over 60 days 8860 B 13,282 10,542
77,449 63,162
As of 30th June 2012, trade receivables of HK$2,282,000 (201 I: HK$2,115,000) RZZ—ZFXA=1TH BHEKK
were impaired. The amount of the provision was HK$2,282,000 (201 I: 2,282,0007% (= F — — 4 : 2,115,000
HK$2,115,000). The individually impaired trade receivables mainly relate to a ABL)RERE RZE-—ZFXA=1
number of independent customers which are in unexpected difficult economic A BESEA2282008T(ZF——
situations. Most of these trade receivables have been past due by more than 360 F:2,11500087T) ° ERRENE ZE
days (201 1: 360 days). WHERRERREMAIMEBERE S

MBILRF - WERKZABHERS
HBiB360HE(ZF——F : 360R) °
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eV RME

23 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continved) 23 BESRBRKERRESE)
Movement in the provision for impairment of trade receivables for the Group is as AEB Y ESRIGUREREESHNT :
follows:

Group

2012 2011

HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

TERr TET

At beginning of the year F1 2,115 2,088
Provision for impairment BB 182 67
Receivables written off as uncollectible W sH 51 AR I (a2 FE UK (22) (69)
Exchange difference b N =5 7 29
At end of the year TR 2,282 2,115

Bills receivable are mainly with maturity period of within 180 days and are

denominated in the following currencies:

EREEZIHEEER—ANTH
A LA EREBEN :

Group
£5

2012 201 |
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TET FET
HK dollar BT 1,024 1,952
US dollar ET 6,329 1492
Renminbi AR 14,083 29,385
21,436 32,829

The carrying value of bills receivable approximates their fair values and there is no

recent history of default on bills receivable.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group transferred certain bills of exchange amounting
to approximately HK$2,083,000 (201 I: HK$3,883,000) with recourse in exchange
for cash as at 30th June 2012. The transactions have been accounted for as

collateralised bank advances (Note 29).

BUREZERERARTEROER
BN 2R o

R-E——FAAZ+HAEEZHEB
DA 42,083,000 T (ZF——F
3,883,000 %8 7T ) MK IR R 2 REIR R AR AL
BYRITNERES - BARHEINA
B RRITER (P E29) -
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FEMBRRME

24 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 24 fTES@MIA
Group
£
2012 2011
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE a8 AE B
HK$'000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$'000
TR TER TR TAL
Held for trading FELE
— Forward foreign exchange contracts (note (i) —NERHR DKL) 233 2,730 3113 4,695
— Interest rate swaps (note (ii)) —FIEEEA A (i) — — — 235
233 2,730 3113 4,930
Notes: Btk
0] Forward foreign exchange contracts (i) INEREIE L

As at 30th June 2012, the Group had outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts
mainly to sell/purchase US dollars and purchase RMB. The maximum notional principal

amounts of these outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts at 30th June 2012 were

RZZ—ZFA=1H  2&EFX
RYOMNEERENEENE BETR
BEUT - RZT—ZFXA=THUE

as follows: ARBINERBEN 2 ZERTEALE
T
Group
56
2012 2011
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
FET THET
Sell HK dollars for US dollars THEBTNEAET 2,747,940 2,304,900
Sell US dollars for HK dollars THERTUNEABT 171,600 990,600
Sell US dollars for RMB HEETUEAARK 175,500 —
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eV RME

24 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 24

Notes: (Continued)

(i) Interest rate swaps

The notional principal amounts of the outstanding interest rate swap contracts at 30th June

2012 were as follows:

TESMIAZ)
It - (48)

iy FIEREHEH

RZZE—ZF A=+ REERZKA

BN REASBOT :

Group
|
2012 2011
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
T FAET
Pay interest at fixed rates and PABEM =X (.8
receive interest at floating rates W LAZ B F R UERF B — 35,000
25 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 25 BRERBITES
Group Company

3 A
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FTET FET TET THET
Cash on hand WEEH 376 243 = =
Bank balances RITAEER 92,973 95583 245 135
93,349 95,826 245 135
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FEMBRRME

25 CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued) 25 RERBITEHE)
Cash and bank balances are denominated in the following currencies: Re RBITEBUTINEB REN -
Group Company
E N
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$' 000
TER TAT TET TAET
HK dollar BT 16,923 20,498 245 135
Renminbi N 56,830 38,659 — —
US dollar X 19,296 36,401 — —
Others At 300 268 — —
93,349 95,826 245 135

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.

The group's cash and bank balances of HK$57,925,000 (201 I: HK$40,808,000) are
deposited with banks in the PRC. The remittance of those funds out of the PRC is

subject to the exchange control restrictions imposed by the PRC government.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

26 TRADE PAYABLES

A majority of the suppliers are on open account. Certain suppliers grant credit

period of 30 to 90 days to the Group.

The ageing analysis of the trade payables is as follows:

26

eV RME

B RAX
ABOHEAA/LER S kT ARE
ZEH-RB=TENTH

BHRNROREATAT :

Group
£E

2012 2011
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TER TR
Below 90 days 0-90H 109,536 101,710
91 - 180 days 91-180 H 715 218
Over 180 days 838 180 B 781 496
111,032 102,424

The carrying values of trade payables approximate their fair values, and are

denominated in the following currencies:

BHRMNT RAERARNTEEE
WA TFIEERELN :

Group
£F

2012 201 |
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TER FHET
HK dollar BT 11,622 9,064
Renminbi AR 22,561 16,648
US dollar xET 76,822 76,702
Euro BT 27 10
111,032 102,424
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBRRME

27 BRERBRERE

Share capital BE
Number of
ordinary Share
shares of capital
HK$0.10 each  nominal value
BREE BRAHEE
0.10/87T2 HK$’ 000
ERRHE TER
Authorised: TEERRA
At Ist July 2010, 30th June 201 | and 2012 RZZ—ZEF+A—H —T——
FRZEF——FA=1H 800,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITREERA
At Ist July 2010, 30th June 201 | and 2012 RZZ—ZF+A—H =T
ER-—FT——&E,A=1H 369,200,000 36,920
Share premium V2.
HK$’ 000
TER
At Ist July 2010, 30th June 201 | and 2012 WZE—ZTF+tH—RH —T—F
k=ZZ——FA=1H 62,466

Annual Report 11/12 FERE
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27 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM (Continued)

Share option scheme

Pursuant to the share option scheme approved and adopted on 5th December
2002, the Board of Directors of the Company may offer eligible employees (including
Executive Directors) rights to subscribe for shares of the Company (the “Share
Options"). Movements in the number of Share Options outstanding during the year

are as follows:

27

eV RME

BRAR RN REE)

BRETE
RE-_ZT_S+_ARBRHETER
ZEBIE R ARRZEZEAMA
ERER(BHRATES ) RERRAL
Al 2 BRI (TREBLRE ) - RAEFE
RAMIEZBREZZWT -

Number of shares subject

to the Share Options

BRETRBERY
2012 2011
At beginning and at end of the year FORER 1,500,000 1,500,000

Details of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme outstanding as at
30th June 2012 and 30th June 201 | are as follows:

R=F-—6AA=+AR=F——%
AAZT B RBBIE 8 2 KT
ERBHENT -

Number of shares subject

Date of grant Expiry date Exercise price to the Share Options
R AH MR TfEE FBRETRBARE
2012 2011
Employees | 3th February 2008 |2th February 2014 HK$0.78
B8 “EF\F-A+=A —F-WFE-_A+-H 078EL 1,500,000 1,500,000
1,500,000 1,500,000

Options granted are exercisable within a period of six years within which there is
a total vesting period of three years. Commencing from the first, second and third
anniversaries of the offer date of an option, the relevant grantee may exercise up to
33%, 67% and 100% respectively of the shares comprised in his or her option. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the options in

cash.

REBREARAFENTE  MEHE
BREARHEN=F5E - BEARA
IRBRERBORENE - F RS
“RFEERERBRTEIANIZRES
Z=T= BAZARTERBEAZ—A
MERBRE AEEYEEERETE
BEENR G BRI AERBRE -
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FEMBRRME

27 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM (Continued) 27 RERBREFREE)
Share option scheme (Continued) BRETE(E)
The fair value of these options is to be expensed over the vesting period and the AFEVEEAEEERENATES
amount recognised for the year was Nil (201 I: HK$31,000). FREENRXERRAFERA(ZE

——% 1 3],000/87T) °

The fair values of options granted under the share option scheme determined using ERAZEAAEEERAEERERR
the Binomial Option Pricing Model were as follows: BrEIRLCBREZATEDNT

| 3th February

2008
—TT)N\F
Date of grant of share option R Bk B A —RA+t=H
Average fair value of share options at date of grant R B ERRB A 2 I R THE HK$0.277
027787
Significant inputs into the valuation model: ERA 2 ERBARE :
Exercise price 1TEE HK$0.78
078 87T
Share price at grant date KL BHZRE HK$0.72
072787
Expected volatility TEHIR 1R 66%
Risk-free interest rate EREBRAEE 1.99%
Expected life of options FRARIE < TRERB AU 6 years
6%
Expected dividend yield TEHIRR B B3 6%
The volatility measured at the standard deviation of expected share price returns is RREHRERGNEEEMTENE
based on the é-year historical share price movement of the Company prior to the HREEE  BEAZ NFEAKRED
option grant date. FArAMTEtE -
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HEMBRRME
28 RESERVES 28 @&
(a)  Group (a) %5
Other reserves
Eie
Available-
Share Capital for-sale  Exchange
option reserve financial  fluctuation
reserve (note () Revaluation asset reserve reserve Retained
Bk  ExER reserve g ER  Subtowl  earnings Total
BEE  (ME() EMRE EERE  NERR Pt REEA #g
HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HKS 000
Térn Tér TErn  TEn  TEn  TEn  TEn  TEn
At Istuly 2011, R_F—FLA-R-
as previously reported HAER 415 408 5163 49 57,260 63685 27668 340366
Prior year adjustments n respect of SHHREY L
change in accounting policy BEERA% - - 49 - - 419 2014 243
At IstJuly 2011, R-2——FtA-A
as estted (&) 415 w5 £ W G4 BES 3T
Proft for te year KEEH - - - - - - 1,365 1,365
Revaluation gain of property, plant EN T
and equipment and leasehold ERETHR L
land and and s rights on EREBLTRE
transfer to investment LT
propertes- Gross Yi-28 - = 115 = = 115 = 115
Revaluation gai of avaleble-forsale TR ERIHARE
financial asset LEfhs - - - 188 - 188 - 188
Currency translaton diferences EiZE - - - = 7007 7007 = 7007
Dividend paid RExH
- 20102011 fird dhidend paid -%fi-%-%/
ZEEERERS - - - - - - B ()
At 30th June 2012 RZE—5/A=1H 415 408 5697 627 64,267 1414 276368 347782
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FEMBRRME

28 RESERVES (Continued)
(@)  Group (Continued)

28 fHEE)

(@) #£8(&)

Other reserves
Bttt
Avalable-
Share Captal forsdle  Bxchange
option reserve financil  fuctuation
reserve (note (i) Revaluation  asset reserve reserve Retained
Bk ANGR reserve ps Ef  Subton eamings Total
BRE (M) EURE  ZERR  IIRR Pit REER B
HKGOO0  HKS000  HKFOOD  HKSO00  HKFOO0  HKSOOO  HKSO00  HK$OO
T T TAL TR TaL T T T
At Istuly 2010, a5 previously reported - R=F—-SE+ AR - FHER 34 408 39%9 — A4 a4 mM T
Prior year adustments in respect of RepEEg,
change i accounting policy BREFEEE = = ik = = 1L 2608 3406
At Ity 010, asrestted RZF-F5+A-R(E)) 3B w4 — M % 19 e
Proft for the year KEEA - - - - - - 30 30
Revaluaton gan of property, plantand ~ ¥1% ~ BiE REAEME
equipment and leasehold fand and TR LERE
land use rights on transfer to BRTREMEL
investment properties- Gross EG - - 1,629 - - 1,629 - 1629
Deferred tax on revaluation gans of 4% * BB Rk
property, pentandequpmentand  ERELHRTHFA
leaschold lnd and land wse rights on -~ EBBERENF
transferto investment properties Biflsn B BEHA = = (784 = = (764 = (784)
Revaluation gan of avalable-for-ssle ~ AIRHHIERHE
financial asset BEZEfR NG - - - 439 - 49 - 439
Currency trandition difierences EiZE - - = = 14815 14815 = 14815
Employes share options scheme: ERERES:
- value of employee services -EEMRHER 3 - - - - 3l - 3l
Dividend paid LS
- 0090010 francil dridend paid— ~%H=FEN/
“E-RERRERE - - - - - S (I A
00102011 nterin didendpad ~~ ~XFI=F-F/
- FEPHRE - - - - - - () (M)
At 30th June 2011 R-B—47A=1H 415 408 5562 439 57,260 6104 186 39
Representing fx:
Proposed 201072011 final dividend F-3-%
ZFERRARE 39
Others £ 7503
27869
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HEMBRRME
28 RESERVES (Continued) 28 fRiE(E)
(b)  Company (b) 4A]
Other reserves
Hitvfd
Contributed
surplus Share
(note (ii)) option Retained
ByEsR reserve Sub-total earnings Total
(BEE (i) IBRRERE Pat REEN b

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TERr TiEnr TER TER TER

At st July 2011 RZTE——F+H—H 62,511 415 62,926 4,600 67,526
Loss for the year REEE = = = (638) (638)
201072011 final dividend paid S =F—%/

—E——FE

AERE — — — (3,692) (3,692)
At 30th June 2012 RZT—ZF

~NB=1H 62,511 415 62,926 270 63,196
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e MBmRMEE
28 RESERVES (Continued) 28 fEE)
(b)  Company (Continued) ) RAE(E
Other reserves
HitvlE
Contributed
surplus Share
(note (i) option Retained
BB reserve Sub-total earnings Total
(MfEEG) REARIERARE hat REEAN it
HK$' 000 HK$ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$ 000
FET FET TET TET TET
At Ist July 2010 R-_Z—FFt+tH—H 62511 384 62,895 8,995 71,890
Profit for the year RE — — 6,681 6,681
Employee share EBERETS
options scheme: —RERBKEE
- value of employee services — 31 31 — 31
2009/2010 final dividend paid X =TT,/
—T-THFE
REIRE — — (7,384) (7,384)
20107201 | interim XN=ZF—F
dividend paid —T—5F
 EAR B — — (3,692) (3,692)
At 30th June 201 | RZT——F
S~NA=+H 62511 415 62,926 4,600 67,526
Representing: R -
Proposed 2010/ EE—T-T/
201 | final dividend —E—5E
RARE 3,692
Others Hits 908
4,600
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Annual Report 11/12 FERE



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

28 RESERVES (Continued)

Notes:

0

Capital reserve of the Group of HK$408,000 (201 I: HK$408,000) represents the aggregate
amount of the non-voting deferred shares of Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Matenials Limited and
the difference between the nominal amount of the share capital issued by the Company in
exchange for the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired

pursuant to the group reorganisation in 1994 (the “Reorganisation”).

Contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference between the consolidated
shareholders' funds of Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited at the date on which the
Reorganisation became effective and the nominal amount of the Company's shares issued
under the Reorganisation. At Group level the contributed surplus is reclassified into its

components of reserves of the underlying subsidiaries.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed surplus is distributable to
shareholders, subject to the condition that the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend,
or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if (i) it is, or after the payment be, unable
to pay its liabilities as they become due, or (i) the realisable value of its assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share

premium account.

FEMBIRRMEE

28 fRB#)

M

(i)

(i

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited

REB 2 B £ 4080007 (=
T——% : 40800087 ) HRELBRBR
BERARZEREEELERMDEE
BR—ANNEARARREEEER
([ZH )BTz RAEERRLHR
WENBLARZRARBRERNEZE
o

ARAZEHAB TINgi Hing
(International) Company Limited FA & 48
ERAHZEABRRESBEARERE
BERMBETBRNAEREZZR - &
SEZEHRBRNENBEABTANBL
AlZERAEAA o

BEERE-AN-FRRAEE
i) BRRHAISKTRRE - KRIEF
AEEHARE ()R ARIKAR Sk E
HEADIRE RS HBE R
B K()ARIBEZNEREBES
HAEMERE A EREEZTRAEAR
RE 2 BE - AlZ AR NMEEIRIR
HREFHERAHFEHDIR o
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FEMBRRME

29 BORROWINGS 29 f2E
Group
£
2012 2011
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TEn TAET
Obligations under finance leases MEMEEME — 235
Less: Obligations under finance lease - current portion B ERERE—BIEEHD — (235)
Current borrowings nEEE
Bank loans due for repayment within one year-secured FR—FAEEZ
RITER-HER 57,854 52316
Bank loans due for repayment after one year which ER—FREEBASEREX
contain a repayment on demand clause-secured BRIE 2 RITER— FEA 10,595 19,767
Trust receipt loans due for repayment FR—FRNEEZETE
within one year-secured WiEES—FHER 219,444 265,382
Bank advances for discounted bills (Note 23) RITRIR BRI (MEE23) 2,083 3,883
Bank overdrafts, secured RITEX - FEM 4391 2,593
294,367 343941
Obligations under finance leases - current portion MEMERE M — 235
294,367 344,176
Total borrowings BEsE 294,367 344,176
140
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29 BORROWINGS (Continued)

The carrying amount of the Group's borrowings approximates their fair values, and

is denominated in the following currencies:

29

FEMBIRRMEE

B8 #®)
AEBEREEZRAEEANTERES -
YA TG BEL

Group

2012 2011
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TR FHET
HK dollar BT 219,626 280,982
Renminbi AR 51,963 50,787
US dollar eV 20,497 9,017
Euro BT 2,281 3390
294,367 344,176

At 30th June 2012, all of the Group’s bank borrowings are wholly repayable within RZE——FXA=1+H AEEHNE

five years.

The amounts repayable based on the scheduled repayment date set out in the loan

agreements ignoring the effect of any repayment on demand clause are as follows:

TEFHFNRENESR -

Bank borrowings

RITEE
2012 201 |
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
TERT FHET
Within | year —FR 283,772 324,174
Between | to 2 years —FEMF 8,486 3,664
Between 2 to 5 years MEERF 2,109 16,103
294,367 343,941
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FEMBRRME

29 BORROWINGS (Continued) 29

The Group's finance lease obligations are analysed as follows:

te& @)
AEBZRERERAANMT

Finance lease obligations

MERESE
2012 2011
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FTERT FET
Total minimum lease payments: RIEHEETER
— Within | year ——FR — 237
Less: Future finance charges on finance leases B BMERE ARG BER — )
Present value of obligations under finance leases MEMESECRE — 235
The present value of obligations under finance leases is as follows: SEHEEETRBRELNT !
2012 2011
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Within | year —FR = 235

The exposure of the Group's borrowings to interest rate changes and the weighted

average interest rates at the balance sheet date are as follows:

REEREXAASE FRUTIER
BIMARRIETHAENT ;

Group
£H

2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAET
— at fixed rates —EEFE 283,567 32834
— at floating rates —ZBFE 10,800 15,835
294,367 344,176
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FEMBIRRMEE

BORROWINGS (Continved) 29 BE#®
2012 2011

HK$ RMB  USD  EUR  HK§  RMB  USD  EWR

Bt AR® XZn  EBr  Br ARE It Bx
Obligations under finance leases MEMERM — — - —  300% - - -
Trust receipt loans ERREER 251% —  247% —  195% —  205% —
Short-term and long-term bank loans SR EI R R HISRITER 181%  9.09% —  266%  184%  831% —  266%
Bank advances for discounted bills SRITE R ZERN — 8.56% 1.75% — — 8.71% — —

Bank borrowings are secured by certain property, plant and equipment (Note 6),
leasehold land and land use rights (Note 17) and investment properties (Note |8)
of the Group.

The bank advances for discounted bills with recourse have been accounted
for as collateralised bank advances. The discounted bills receivable and the
related proceeds of the same amount are included in the Group's trade and bills
receivables (Note 23) and short-term borrowings respectively at the balance sheet

date.

ROEFAAEBHINNE  BEX
(M 16)  BMEL R T ERE
(M2 17) AR E YR (HIEE 18) ;i

MBERERREEMATRITAE
RITBREF AERCHRTER - 1
BEABRAUSHRAZRERER
RBEMERDAERERIEECE Sk
Wk R (M 23) R HEE -
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FEMBRRME

30

DEFERRED TAXATION 30 EEHRE
Deferred income taxes are calculated in respect of temporary differences under the BIEMEHIEANEERCEMKE
liability method using the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the balance ErEBmnmENaBizsERER
sheet date. A8 -
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right EREEANTENERENEEER
to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred BAEREAESE HETMERIR
income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority. The following amounts, determined R—BBEE - BRI EEREHERE
after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the balance sheet: HAEEREH - st ABEERE
TIEBREERBRAIIE :
Group
£
2012 2011
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
TEnr TAET
(Restated)
(&%)
Deferred tax assets BRERIAEE 5,428 5,988
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHEAE (5,400) (5,674)
28 314
The net movement on the deferred tax account is as follows: EHRRLEMEHERNFEHMT
Group
&£E
2012 2011
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TEr TAET
(Restated)
(831))
At beginning of the year, as previously reported ) - EAIER (2,119) (755)
Prior year adjustment in respect of change in accounting policy &5 EURE &)« BEFE AR 2,433 3,406
At beginining of the year, as restated FN(EF) 314 2,651
Charged to equity R — (764)
Charged to consolidated income statement (Note 10) FEAR A Waa R AR (P EE 10) (362) (1,648)
Exchange differences EHER 76 75
At end of the year FR 28 314
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FEMBIRRMEE

30 DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

30 EEFEE)

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year, without taking FREEHEEERARE 2 ZE(EF—
into consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as B < & eRIESHAT) T -
follows:
Deferred tax liabilities: BERIEER -
Fair value gains on Accelerated tax
investment properties depreciation Total
RENEAFEKS IR 47 B nE
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$000 HK$O000 HK$000 HKF000 HK$000 HKE 000
Tdrn ThExT FErR TExT FErR TER
At beginning of the year, F1 - ARIER
as previously reported 3,259 3,406 6,113 2,264 9,372 5670
Prior year adjustment in SE-diiet
respect of change in BEFEHE
accounting policy (2,433) (3,406) — — (2,433) (3,406)
At beginning of the year, FH(E)
as restated 826 — 6,113 2,264 6,939 2,264
Charged to equity TEREEAHIRR — 764 — — — 764
Charged/(credited) to W RN/ (GTA)
income statement 154 62 (141) 3824 13 3,886
Exchange differences BE 5 = HE 20 — 35 25 55 25
At end of the year FAR 1,000 826 6,007 6,113 7,007 6,939
Deferred tax assets: BERIBERE -
Decelerated tax
Provisions Tax losses depreciation Total
R HBER HERBIE ]
2012 211 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000 HKFO00 HK$'000  HKS000
Tén TEr TEx Tt TEx TEr TEr  TEn
At beginning of the year E4) 230 1946 1,948 250 2,983 2719 7253 4915
Credited!(charged) to income statement  FEWREEFRET A/ (308 800 29} (59)  16% (557) 198 (49) 13
Exchange differences EHER 57 3 - - 74 66 131 100
At end of the year ER 3179 2312 1,356 1948 2,500 2983 7,035 7253
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FEMBRRME

30

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry forward to the extent that
the realisation of the related tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable.
At 30th June 2012, the Group had unrecognised tax losses to be carried forward
against future taxable income amounted to approximately HK$94,910,000 (201 1:
HK$62,183,000). These tax losses have no expiry date except that approximately
HK$9,012,000 (201 I: HK$9,184,000) will expire from 2013 to 2016. The potential
deferred tax assets in respect of these tax losses which have not been recognised
amounted to approximately HK$15,080,000 (201 I: HK$9,047,000).

As at 30th June 2012, deferred taxation has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to profits earned by certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group amounting to
approximately HK$69,527,000 (201 |: HK$57,008,000) as the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable

that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

At 30th June 2012 and 201 |, the Company had no material deferred tax assets or

liabilities.
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BEWE(E)

REBOTBEEMBERNELREH
BEERNAB MBS AR
ARERBRANERNBS - RZF
—ZH#XNA=TH AEBUERTE
BEUHEEARARERT M SO RBEEELY
94,910,000 (=T ——% : 62,183,000
BT ERBLFTEHEERX 15,080,000
BL(ZT——F:90470008 ) °
AT =—FE-Z - FIHNHB
BEHA012008L(ZE——F:
9,184,000 7T) °

RZZE——F A=+H KAEELRX
HETHENE QA BRI HLL
69,527,000 7L (= ——4F : 57,008,000
B ERNERERTEHERE AR
EENEHZEEREE I BERR
WRRAIRZ R ZEE R EZHA LT
2RE -

RZE——FR-_FT——FX A=+
B ARRVESKELEHRELEESA

E



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBIRRMEE

31

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 3l FERERER
(a)  Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash generated @) BHAFIELEREEL ([
from/(used in) operations: )2 B e -
Group
2012 2011
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
TR TET
Profit before income tax A A 11,365 46,342
Adjustments for: FHEIER
— Depreciation of property, plant and equipment —% - BERREHE 17,293 13,951
— Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, —HEYE  BEEREZ
plant and equipment B/ (W) 289 (55)
— Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights ~ —HH & - ih J2 - {5F F At 8 344 384
— Unrealised fair value loss/(gain) on derivative —FEBEEITESMIAZ
financial instruments held for trading AEBEBEAHEESR,(WH) 680 (2,700)
— Fair value gains on investment properties —REMEHLTERR (13,073) (3,093)
— Share of loss of an associated company —DEBMENTEES R — 184
— Impairment of goodwill —EERE — 18
— Share-based compensation expenses — R AERNMEER — 31
— Provision for impairment of trade receivables — B RIREER 182 67
— Reversal of provision for impairment of inventories ~ — 17 &R {EZ2E D (682) (87)
— Loss on disposal of a subsidiary —HE-—MBARER 120 =
— Interest income —FIBWA (310) (239)
— Interest expense —FEXH 10,606 7,614
— Exchange differences —EXER 4,635 8,883
Changes in working capital: 2EEeE
— Inventories —-FE 49,495 (51,381)
— Trade and bills receivables, other receivables, — BB RERER
prepayments and deposits Hip Yo - AR Rk ES (848) (35,236)
— Trade payables, other payables and deposits —BHRMNFK - EtEMATRR
received and accruals BlETe RFERER 3,806 1,756
Cash generated from/(used in) in operations rEXBEL/(FR)Z2HEL 83,902 (13561)
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FEMBRRME

31 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued) 31

(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from sales of

property, plant and equipment comprise:

BeHERERSE)
(b) EHEEEEREXA  HEYE
BB RREHFTZA L -

2012 2011

HK$’ 000 HK$' 000

TEr TAET

Net book amount (Note 16) AREVHE (P 16) 564 190

(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HENE - BERRE2

plant and equipment (Note 8) (&518),/ Weas (FiEs) (289) 55
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME « MEREEMER

plant and equipment 275 245

(c)  Disposal of a subsidiary

On 27th June 2012, the Group entered into an agreement to dispose of its
entire 55% equity interests in EMAA Logistics (Hong Kong) Limited (“"EMAA
Logistics”) to the an independent third party, who owns the remaining 45%
equity interests in EMAA Logistics. After the disposal, the Group does not

hold any interests in EMAA Logistics.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEMBIRRMEE

31 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued) 3l HERERERE)

(c)  Disposal of a subsidiary (Continued) () HE—HEBLAE)
Details in respect of the disposal of this subsidiary during the year are as REREEARHEULIE R RS
follows: JUNNE

@

HK$’ 000
THERT
Net assets disposed of HERNFEE
— Property, plant and equipment (Note 16) —M%E - BB RERENE 16) 149
— Trade and other receivables —B 5 RHEM KR 894
— Cash and bank balances — B RERITHER 67
— Bank overdrafts —RITEX (96)
— Trade and other payables —B 5 REMENK (1,529)
(515)
Less: Non-controlling interests W IR 635
120
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 7) HEMBERRIEE(HE7) (120
Cash considerations HeRE -
Cash and cash equivalents of the subsidiary disposed HEMNBARNRE RASER 29
Net cash inflow on disposal of a subsidiary HEMRBARMFRESRA 29
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash (d) BirEELREXNE  HLRHE
and cash equivalents include the following: EEFARLTEAR -
2012 201 |
HK$’ 000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Cash and bank balances (Note 25) B & RaRiThaeR(PHEE25) 93,349 95,826
Bank overdrafts (Note 29) RITEX (FHFE29) (4,391) (2.593)
88,958 93,233
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FEMBRRME

32 COMMITMENTS

(a)  Capital commitments

®)

At 30th June 2012, the Group had the following capital commitments for

32

iR

@

BARAE

R=E—

“FRXA=TH 7&E

addition of property, plant and equipment: BEN%E  BERREERRE
mr
2012 2011
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
FHET THET
Contracted but not provided for BENEREE 6,909 7,360
Commitment under operating leases (b) HEHERE

As at 30th June 2012, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of land and

buildings as follows:

BRTFIHRZ Mz AR N2
FIAAUREEERE 2 RR&RD

HEMN
2012 2011
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
TER TAT
Not later than one year —FR 4,135 5,400
Later than one year and not later than five years —FRETMEREF 2,321 3,548
Later than five years TF& — 32
6,456 8,980
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

MR RM T

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33 AHEALRS
The Group is controlled by Good Benefit Limited, a company incorporated in the A& B Good Benefit Limited (X B
British Virgin Islands, which owns 53.3% of the Company's shares. The remaining TEBEMAL 2 AR ES - HEFAR
46.7% of the shares were widely held. Substantially all of the shares of Good Benefit RABDZET=B=RE HE#rzA
Limited are beneficially owned by certain Directors of the Company. DT RELREREZRAR ° Good
Benefit Limited BE L K& D RAEHAR
AZHAEERRHE -
The Directors of the Company are regarded as key management of the Group ARAMAESHRRATEECER
and details of compensation paid to them are disclosed in Note |5 to the financial BEAR  HFAFME NG HMER
statements. RMTEE 15 B -
The Directors are of the opinion that no other material related party transactions EERRAEEARFAEFENYEL2EE
had been undertaken by the Group during the year. HEARBEALRS -
ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY 34 BEEZERDF
The Directors regard Good Benefit Limited, a company incorporated in the British EERREDAIREERRF A Good
Virgin Islands, as being the ultimate holding company. Benefit Limited (TE B f2 2 B S AL
pANCIE
PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 35, FEMEAFE
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2012: RZZE-—_FXA=+H FAFZF
BHEAANT :
Place of Effective
incorporation/ Issued and fully percentage of
operation and paid up share capital/ equity held by
*kind of legal entity registered capital the Company
Name HME L R i ERTREE Principal activities ~ ANATHEZ
=1 R*EAER B,/ ERER IEXEE EBRREFELH
Ngai Hing (International) British Virgin Islands US$100 Investment holding 100
Company Limited EERLES 100%7T REEKR
(note b) (Fi#zEDb)
Dongguan Ngai Hing Plastic The PRC HK$93,200,000  Manufacture and sale of colorants 100
Materials Ltd. * wholly foreign 93,200,000 87T and compounded plastic resins

RERALBRE
BRRA]

- owned enterprise
5
*NEAEELE

BENHERCHR
B AR
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FEMBRRME

35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35, FEMEARE)
Place of Effective
incorporation/ Issued and fully percentage of
operation and paid up share capital/ equity held by
*kind of legal entity registered capital the Company
Name MR S B ERTRMRE Principal activities ~ AAFRFEZ
#8 R E AR RE/ERER IREE BERRAEIML
Hong Kong Colour Hong Kong 500,000 Manufacture and trading of 100
Technology Limited BB ordinary shares colorants and compounded
AEEXARAA of HK$ | each plastic resins
500,000 & & BERREECHR
BRIET BB
Ngai Hing Engineering Hong Kong 2,000,000 Manufacture of 76.2
Plastic Materials Limited BB ordinary shares of engineering plastic
RETIRZHARAR HK$ ! each products
2,000,000 E3BAX TR
BRIET BRBEM
Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Hong Kong 1,000 Investment holding and 100
Materials Limited BB ordinary shares of property holding
REZBRAFRAR HK$ | each REZERK
1,000 E3BAX REERIES
S BT
500,000
non-voting deferred
shares of HK$ | each (note c)
500,000 R RHE
B SR | BT
(Mf&Ec)
Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Hong Kong 500,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Materials (Hong Kong) BB ordinary shares of BEEBRBRH
Limited HK$ I each
BRABBER(FR) 500000 EBAE 1 BT
BRRA

152
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MR RM T

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) TENBELRE)
Place of Effective
incorporation/ Issued and fully percentage of
operation and paid up share capital/ equity held by
* kind of legal entity registered capital the Company
Name ML S BRETRAR Principal activities ~ NATFEZ
#8 K& AR R/ EMER IEXE BRREFEIHL
Shanghai Ngai Hing Plastic The PRC HK$34,400,000 Manufacture and sale of 100
Materials Co., Ltd. * wholly foreign 34,400,000 87T colorants and compounded
LEREBBRE - owned enterprise plastic resins
BRRA] R BENHEEEH
*NEBELE REEARKIEME
Tsing Tao Ngai Hing Plastic The PRC HK$10,500,000 Manufacture and sale of 100
Materials Co,, Ltd. * wholly foreign 10,500,000 87T colorants and compounded
BEEREZBRE - owned enterprise plastic resins
BRRA] R BERHEEREH
*SNEIEELE REGBAKEE
NHH Coltec Limited Hong Kong 5,000 Manufacture and sale of 100
REEZARATF £ ordinary shares of plastic products
HK$ ! each BER
5,000 & @ HEZBEM
Bk 1BT
Ngai Hing Engineering The PRC US$200,000 Trading of engineering 762
Plastic (Shanghai) Co,, Ltd. * wholly foreign 200,000 7T plastic products
RETIRBR - owned enterprise BETRREBER
(LB)BRAF P
*NEHBELE
Tsing Tao Ngai Hing The PRC US$100,000 Trading of colorants and 100
Trading Co. Ltd * wholly foreign 100,000 7T compounded plastic resins

EERERE
BRAF

- owned enterprise
i
SNEABELE

BEERE
REBARKER
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35  PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35 TEMEARE)
Place of Effective
incorporation/ Issued and fully percentage of
operation and paid up share capital/ equity held by
*kind of legal entity registered capital the Company
Name MR S B ERTRMRE Principal activities ~ AAFRFEZ
#8 R E AR RE/ERER IREE BERRAEIML
Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic Hong Kong 1,000,000 Trading of engineering 762
(Hong Kong) Limited BB ordinary shares of plastic products
BETRREM(FR) HK$ ! each EETREBER
BRAF 1,000,000 & P
Fik 1B
Xiamen Ngai Hing Hong The PRC US$200,000 Manufacture and sale of 100
Plastic Materials Co. Ltd * wholly foreign 200,000 7T colorants and compounded
EFIRBETERBRE - owned enterprise plastic resins
BRRA] 3 BEMHERBHR
*NEEELE EE AR
Guangzhou Ngai Sog The PRC RMB5,000,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Hing Trading Co. Ltd * wholly foreign 5,000,000 AR #& ERBRBRE
BMNTREEE - owned enterprise
BRAF e
NEEELE
Shanghai Ngai Sog Hing The PRC US$400,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Trading Co. Ltd * wholly foreign 400,00037C BEEZRBRY
il il - owned enterprise
FREEERRA i
*NEEELFE
NHH Biodegradable Plastics Hong Kong 10,000 Manufacture and sale of 85
Company Limited BB ordinary shares of biodegradable plastic
RERREHARAR HKS$ | each materials
10,000 E 3 BUERHE
BB RREBRH
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MR RM T

RERIBH
HERRAR

- owned enterprise
=
*SNEAEELE

35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35 FEMBLRE)
Place of Effective
incorporation/ Issued and fully percentage of
operation and paid up share capital/ equity held by
* kind of legal entity registered capital the Company
Name ML S BRETRAR Principal activities ~ NATFEZ
#8 K& AR R/ EMER IEXE BRREFEIHL
Ngai Hing Engineering The PRC HK$8,000,000 Trading of engineering 762
Plastic (Dongguan) Co., Ltd. * wholly foreign 8,000,000 7T plastic products
ReR T T2BE - owned enterprise BETRZBEM
BRRA] 5
*NEBELE
Shanghai Coltec Plastic The PRC US$200,000 Trading of colorants and 100
Trading Co. Ltd * wholly foreign 2000003 7T compounded plastic resins
LBEEEH - owned enterprise BEBEEGHR
BEHBRAA R EE AR
*SNEIEELE
Dongguan Coltec Plastic The PRC HK$3,000,000 Trading of colorants and 100
Trading Co. Ltd * wholly foreign 3,000,000 87T compounded plastic resins
REBAEER - owned enterprise BEEEHK
BHERAT = BB A
*NEBELE
NHH Worldwide Logistics Hong Kong 1,000,000 ordinary Logistics Service 84
Limited B shares of HK$| each W R
BERR AR AT 1,000,000 &
Bk 1BT
Tianjin Ngai Sog Hing The PRC US$400,000 Trading of Plastic Materials 100
Trading Co. Ltd * wholly foreign 400,000 7T BEEZBRE
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FEMBRRME

35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes:

@

All the subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong and BVI are limited liability companies. All

subsidiaries established in the PRC are wholly foreign-owned enterprises.

Other than Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited, which is directly held by the
Company, all the principal subsidiaries listed above are indirectly held by the Company.

The holders of the non-voting deferred shares in Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials Limited
(“NHHPML") shall not be entitled to any participation in the profits or surplus assets of
NHHPML and they are not entitled to receive notice of or attend or vote at any general

meeting of NHHPML in respect of their holdings of such deferred shares.

Ngai Hing (Intemational) Company Limited has been granted an option by the holders of
the non-voting deferred shares to acquire these shares for an aggregate cash consideration
of HK$4.

The above table includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the
Directors, principally affected the results of the year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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FEREEREBRLHBEMAKILZ
WELREAEREEAR - HART
BRIz MBARIRIEBELE -

PR L5 2 2B 2R Neai Hing
(International) Company Limited FRZR 22
AIEERAIN HMARAREREES -

REZBRABRAFARE]ER
FREERNZFEABE2EREY
aMIRBEEDK - EERERA
BB WERR BERAGBEL
FRERRAEANEG LRER -

Ngai Hing (International) Company
Limited AR S BRE 4B TRERTE
BIEROFHAARLAIEEZSRDZ
TR o

TRIHEERRYEAFREERNE
EYEVERAKEEEFEL IR
NZAREMBRR - EERRMET]
HtMBARZHBESERBRT
Ko



The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the last five financial years are as

Five-Year Financial Summary

AFHBG#E

ARERBEDAMBRERESFIRE  BE

follows: REEDT
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$O000  HK$ 000
TER TET THET FET TET
(Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)
(&51) (&51) (&51) (&51)
Results E
Profit/(loss) attributable to equity NEIRRENG
holders of the Company Al (E18) 1,365 31,102 28,443 (20,640) 25,530
Assets and liabilities BEREE
Total assets BERE 904,731 948,748 812944 592,040 764,431
Total liabilities afEeE (433950)  (484037)  (386,104)  (193280)  (343907)
Non-controlling interests FEPE I (23,613) (22,526) (20831) (19,348) (17,397)
Capital and reserves attributable to NEIIRRIEL
the Company's equity holders PR K 447,168 442,185 406,009 379412 403,127
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Company Directory
AEERE

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials (Hong Kong) Limited
NHH Coltec Limited

Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic Materials Limited

Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic (Hong Kong) Limited
NHH Biodegradable Plastics Company Limited

Hong Kong Office:

Unit 3, 6th Floor, Hopeful Factory Centre,
10 Wo Shing Street,

Fo Tan, New Territories,

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2693 1663

Fax: (852) 2694 0877

Website: http://www.nhh.com.hk

E-mail address: info@nhh.com.hk

Hong Kong Factory:

No. 9 Dai Shun Street,

Tai Po Industrial Estate,

Tai Po, New Territories,

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2660 0208/2693 1772
Fax: (852) 2667 4831/2694 0017

Dongguan Factory:

Chiling Industrial Zone, Houjie Town,
Dongguan City,

Guangdong Province,

The People's Republic of China

Tel: (86) 769-8558 8755  Zip: 523940
Fax: (86) 769-8558 1756

158

Annual Report 11/12 FERSE

.-ﬂd'_'-'"h_.

RATERAQF
(REFZEZMALZ ARLE])
REBBRE(BE)ARLH
REBEARLA
RETIREBERRF
RETRER(BE)ARLH
RERREBARDLT

ERMERE

5

RN

REH 105
BBIERLEIE

FiE 1 (852) 2693 1663

{EE : (852) 2694 0877

A34E © http://www.nhh.com.hk
BT E ML ¢ info@nhh.com.hk

EREL

e

MARAKIE

KB TP

RNIBEH 957

FiE ¢ (852) 2660 0208/2693 1772
BE : (852) 2667 4831/2694 0017

RERL

A RAME

BRE

REM

EHEREIER

F L ¢ (86) 769-8558 8755 EHARHE 1 523940
BE : (86) 769-8558 1756



Company Directory

ATE)ERH
Guangzhou Office: BMNBSE :
A1805, Center Plaza, REARLM
No. 161 Linhe Road West, BT
Tianhe District, KA
Guangzhou, MRFEEE 161 5%
The People’s Republic of China 2R BB E 5 A 1805
Tel: (86) 20-3831 0226  Zip : 510620 B3 ¢ (86) 20-3831 0226  EHUR ¢ 510620
Fax: (86) 20-3831 0223 BE : (86) 20-3831 0223
Shanghai Office: IERER
Unit E, 16th Floor, PEARLME
Zhao Feng Universe Building, iei=hil
No. 1800 Zhongshan West Road, L 1800 5%
Shanghai, KERHKE
The People’s Republic of China I 1922
Tel: (86) 21-6440 0997  Zip: 200235 FE 0 (86) 21-6440 0997  BBEURE : 200235
Fax: (86) 21-6440 0977 BE : (86) 21-6440 0977
Shanghai Factory: LRt
No. 8100, Songze Ave. g AR AME
Qingpu Industrial Zone, &m
Shanghai, BHIXRRE
The People’s Republic of China FAEAIE 8100 5%
Tel: (86) 21-6921 3333 Zip: 201707 B3 ¢ (86) 21-6921 3333 BEHUR : 201707
Fax: (86) 21-6921 5555 BE : (86) 21-6921 5555
Qingdao Factory: ?%ﬂﬁiﬂ: :
Haier (Jiaozhou) International Industrial Zone, hEARANE
Jiaozhou ECO & TECH Development Zone, Qingdao, 55 3) | R R R
The People’s Republic of China ARBMNERIER
Tel: (86) 532-8727 3100 Zip: 266300 B3E 1 (86) 532-8727 3100 EHURIR : 266300
Fax: (86) 532-8727 3110 BE : (86) 532-8727 3110
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Chengdu Office:

Room 2919, Building B,

Longhu 3000 Constellations,

No.2 Jianshe North Road Section 3,
Chengdu City, Sichuan Province,

The People's Republic of China

Tel: (86) 28-8328 5026  Zip: 61005
Fax: (86) 28-8328 5126

Xiamen Factory:

I/F & 2/F, J-7 Building, Yongquan Industrial Park,

Guankou Town, Jimei District,
Xiamen City, Fujian Province,

The People's Republic of China

Tel: (86) 592-6093211  Zip: 361023
Fax: (86) 592-6093600

Tianjin Office:

Room 1616, No. 349 Nanjing Road,
Nankai District, Tianjin,

The People’'s Republic of China

Tel: (86) 22-8752 8026  Zip: 300073
Fax: (86) 22-8752 8109
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